Public Document Pack

NORTH WEST (INNER) AREA COMMITTEE

Meeting to be held at the City of Leeds School, Bedford Field,
Woodhouse Cliff, Leeds 6 on Thursday, 3rd April, 2008 at 7.00 pm
N.B. A map of the venue, including bus routes is appended to the agenda

MEMBERSHIP
Councillors

Agenda compiled by:
Governance Services Unit
Civic Hall
LEEDS LS1 1UR
Telephone: 247 4360

M Hamilton
J Monaghan (Chair) D Morton
-

Headingley
Headingley
Headingley

P Ewens
K Hussain
L Rhodes-Clayton

-

Hyde Park and Woodhouse
Hyde Park and Woodhouse
Hyde Park and Woodhouse

B Atha
J Illingworth
E Minkin

-

Kirkstall
Kirkstall
Kirkstall

S Bentley
J Chapman
B Jennings

-

Weetwood
Weetwood
Weetwood

Stuart Robinson

N W Area Manager: Steve Crocker
Tel: 395 0966

Produced on Recycled Paper

A

A BRIEF EXPLANATION OF
COUNCIL FUNCTIONS AND EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS

There are certain functions that are defined by regulations which can only be carried out at
a meeting of the Full Council or under a Scheme of Delegation approved by the Full
Council. Everything else is an Executive Function and, therefore, is carried out by the
Council’s Executive Board or under a Scheme of Delegation agreed by the Executive
Board.
The Area Committee has some functions which are delegated from full Council and some
Functions which are delegated from the Executive Board. Both functions are kept
separately in order to make it clear where the authority has come from so that if there are
decisions that the Area Committee decides not to make they know which body the
decision should be referred back to.

B

AGENDA

Item
No
1

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION
OF DOCUMENTS
To consider any appeals in accordance with
Procedure Rule 25 of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the
press and public will be excluded

2

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC
To identify items where resolutions may be moved
to exclude the public

3

LATE ITEMS
To identify items which have been admitted to the
agenda by the Chair for consideration
(The special circumstances shall be specified in
the minutes)

4

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To declare any personal/prejudicial interests for the
purpose of Section 81(3) of the Local Government
Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of the Members
Code of Conduct

5

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

C

Item
No
6

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
OPEN FORUM
In accordance with Paragraphs 6.24 and 6.25 of
the Area Committee Procedure Rules, at the
discretion of the Chair a period of up to 10 minutes
may be allocated at each ordinary meeting for
members of the public to make representations or
to ask questions on matters within the terms of
reference of the Area Committee. This period of
time may be extended at the discretion of the
Chair. No member of the public shall speak for
more than three minutes in the Open Forum,
except by permission of the Chair.

7

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

1 - 12

To receive and approve the minutes of the
previous meeting held on 7th February 2008.
8

FORUM AND SUB GROUP UPDATE REPORT

13 46

To consider a report of the Director of Environment
and Neighbourhoods providing Members with full
minutes and key messages from ward forums and
sub groups that have taken place since the last
Area Committee.
9

WELL-BEING END OF YEAR MONITORING
REPORT

47 56

To consider a report of the Director of Environment
and Neighbourhoods providing Members with
monitoring of ongoing Well-being projects for
quarter 4 2007-08.
10

AREA MANAGER'S REPORT
To consider a report of the Director of Environment
and Neighbourhoods informing Members of
progress on a number of projects in Inner North
West Leeds.

D

57 62

Item
No
11

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
DEVELOPMENT OF NEW AREA DELIVERY
PLAN FOR 2008-11

63 64

To consider a report of the Director of Environment
and Neighbourhoods on a suggested process for
developing the Area Committee’s new Area
Delivery Plan (ADP) for the period 2008-11.
12

LITTLE LONDON AND WOODHOUSE
INTENSIVE NEIGHBOURHOOD MANAGEMENT

65 68

To consider a report of the Director of Environment
and Neighbourhoods outlining the 2008/09 budget
for the Intensive Neighbourhood Management
Project in Little London and Woodhouse.
13

WOODSLEY ROAD MULTICULTURAL
COMMUNITY CENTRE OPTIONS APPRAISAL
(EXECUTIVE FUNCTION)

69 76

To consider a report of the Director of Environment
and Neighbourhoods on a options appraisal in
relation to Woodsley Road Multicultural Community
Centre.
14

UPDATE ON HMO LICENSING

77 82

To consider a report of the Director of Environment
and Neighbourhoods outlining the current position
in Leeds of the impact of legislation on HMO
licensing.
15

S106 PLANNING AGREEMENTS
To consider a report of the Director of Environment
and Neighbourhoods on S106 Planning
agreements.

E

83 96

Item
No
16

Ward

Item Not
Open

Page
No
DATES, TIMES AND VENUES OF AREA
COMMITTEE MEETINGS 2008/09 (COUNCIL
FUNCTION)
To consider a report of the Chief Democratic
Services Officer requesting Members to give
consideration to agreeing the dates and times of
their Area Committee meetings for the 2008/09
municipal year which commences in May 2008.

MAP OF TODAY’S MEETING, INCLUDING BUS
ROUTES
City of Leeds School, Bedford Field, Woodhouse
Cliff, Leeds LS6 2LG

F

97 104

Agenda Item 7
NORTH WEST (INNER) AREA COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 7TH FEBRUARY, 2008
PRESENT:

Councillor J Monaghan in the Chair
Councillors B Atha, S Bentley, J Chapman,
P Ewens, M Hamilton, K Hussain,
J Illingworth, B Jennings, E Minkin and
D Morton

OFFICERS: Steve Crocker, Area Manager
Jason Singh, North West Area Management
Dayle Lynch, North West Area Management
Andrew Crates, Community Planner
Stuart Robinson, Chief Executive’s Department
Sergeant Darren Bedford, West Yorkshire Police
Huw Jones, re’new
MEMBERS OF
THE PUBLIC

Barrie Payne, Leeds HMO Lobby
Dr Richard Tyler, Leeds HMO Lobby
Ken Waterworth, Kirkstall Valley Community Association
Sheila Waterworth, Kirkstall Valley Community
Association
Amanda Jackson, University of Leeds
Bill McKinnon, Friends of Woodhouse Moor
Janet Bailey, Friends of Woodhouse Moor
Emma Robertson, Hyde Park Source
Kevin Bunn, Hyde Park Unity Day
David Hollingsworth, Hyde Park Unity Day
Bea Horwood, Hyde Park Resident
Penny Bainbridge, Cardigan Centre
Lucinda Yeadon, Labour Candidate, Kirkstall
Mohammed Azam, Labour Candidate, Headingley
Jamie Matthews, Liberal Democrat Candidate,
Headingley
Ruth Coleman, Liberal Democrat Candidate, Kirkstall
Mick Taylor, Liberal Democrat Chair, Leeds West
Sue Buckle, South Headingley Community Association
John Dickinson, Weetwood Residents Association
Lee Davidson, Turnways and Laurel Bank Residents
Association
Evelyn Davidson, Turnways and Laurel Bank Residents
Association
Armit Roy, Local Resident
J E Kellers, Local Resident
Steve Harris, Kirsktall Festival and Local Resident

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 3rd April, 2008

Page 1

76

Chair's Opening Remarks
The Chair welcomed everyone to the February meeting of the North West
(Inner) Area Committee held at Milford Sports Club, Beecroft Street, Leeds 5.
He informed the meeting that Christine Addison had been appointed to the
post of Head of City Projects and following a restructuring exercise, Steve
Crocker had been appointed to the post of Area Manager for North West and
West Leeds.
The Chair, on behalf of the Area Committee, conveyed his thanks to Christine
Addison for her valuable contribution to the area.
The Chair also referred to the recent promotion of Richard Coldwell, West
Yorkshire Police and as a result David Bugg and Ian Croft had been
appointed as North West Inner Area Inspectors. At the request of the Chair,
Sergeant Darren Bedford outlined the new policing arrangements from 3rd
March 2008.
The Chair, on behalf of the Area Committee, conveyed his thanks to Richard
Coldwell for his work in the area.

77

78

Declarations of Interest
The following personal declarations were reported:•

Councillor J Monaghan in his capacity as Friends of Hyde Park Picture
House (Agenda Item 8) (Minute 82 refers)

•

Councillor E Minkin in her capacity as Friends of Hyde Park Picture House
(Agenda Item 8) (Minute 82 refers)

•

Councillor B P Atha in his capacity as Friends of Hyde Park Picture House
(Agenda Item 8) (Minute 82 refers)

•

Councillor J Illingworth in his capacity as a cyclist and user of the A660
(Agenda Item 8) (Minute 82 refers)

Open Forum
In accordance with paragraphs 6.24 and 6.25 of the Area Committee
Procedure Rules, the Chair allowed members of the public to make
representations or ask questions on matters within the terms of reference of
the Area Committee.
In summary the following issues were raised at the meeting:•

Designated Public Places Orders
Janet Bailey, Friends of Woodhouse Moor raised her concerns about the
Designated Public Places Orders currently in place within the City of
Leeds and questioned their validity in relation to the illegal consumption of
alcohol.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 3rd April, 2008

Page 2

Following a brief discussion, the Chair agreed to send a letter to the
appropriate Scrutiny Board requesting an inquiry into this issue.
•

HMO Campaign
Dr Richard Tyler, Leeds HMO Lobby raised the following three issues:-

-

that Leeds HMO Lobby was pleased that the Area Committee’s
initiative to lobby the Government for a change to the legislation on
HMOs had been pursued by the Council
sought Ward Member representation at the Councillors Campaign for
Balanced Communities in Nottingham on 13th March 2008
put forward a proposal that the ‘Area Committee requests a meeting to
be sought with Iain Wright, Planning Minister and a delegation of local
MP’s, Councillors from the NW (Inner) Area Committee, the City’s Chief
Planning Officer and community representatives to lobby for a change
to the Use Classes Order ’
Following a brief discussion, the Area Committee agreed to the
delegation proposal and requested the Chair to write to the Chief
Planning Officer on the above lines.

•

Alders / BHS Appeal
Councillor J Illingworth made reference to the above issue and put forward
the following proposal for the Area Committee to consider:“That North West (Inner) Area Committee urges the Planning Inspector to
have regard to the Council and government policies and to consider first
the convenience and safety of pedestrians, then public transport users and
cyclists. It was not the policy of either organisation to secure ever
increasing numbers of private cars”.
Following discussion, the Area Committee agreed to the above proposal
and requested the Chair to write to the Planning Inspector.

•

Street Lighting in Hyde Park
Sue Buckle, South Headingley Community Organisation commented on
the fact that the street lighting replacement scheme had begun to carryout
some work in the area and that lights were being moved with no local
consultation having taken place. Also that the works were causing a
nuisance as old lights were being left propped against walls and
pavements were being blocked off.
Following a brief discussion, it was agreed to discuss this matter at the
next Streetscene Sub Group.

(Councillor B Jennings joined the meeting at 7.15 pm during discussions on
the item relating to Alders/BHS appeal)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 3rd April, 2008

Page 3

79

Apologies for Absence
A number of apologies received from members of the public were read out at
the meeting.

80

Minutes of the Previous Meetings
RESOLVED –
(a)
That the minutes of the meetings held on 13th December 2007 and 17th
January 2008 be approved as a correct record.
(b)
That the update on matters arising from the previous meetings be
noted.

81

Matters Arising from the Minutes
(a)
Forum and Sub Group Update Report (Minute 58 refers)
Councillor E Minkin referred to the Area Committee Sub Groups and
requested that, in future, a list of forthcoming meeting dates should be
included within the committee papers for the benefit of Members of the
Committee.
Dayle Lynch, North West Area Management responded and agreed to
implement this request.
(b)

Quarter Two Well-Being Monitoring Report (Minute 60 refers)
Councillor E Minkin informed the meeting that Hawksworth Wood
Community Association had still not received their green bin as they
had been informed by the Cleansing Section that there was a six week
delivery period.
Dayle Lynch, North West Area Management agreed to look into this.

(c)

Area Manager’s Report (Minute 63 refers)
Sue Buckle, South Headingley Community Association informed the
meeting that there would be a residents meeting on 20th February 2008
at Brudenell Primary school to discuss the community space provision
at Royal Park Primary School.

(d)

Ralph Thoresby High School and Tinshill Recreation Ground (Minute
66 refers)
Councillor E Minkin referred to the above issue and sought clarification
as to whether resolution (c) had been conveyed to Jean Dent, Director
of City Development.
Dayle Lynch, North West Area Management responded and confirmed
that correspondence had been sent to the Director of City
Development.
Following discussions, Dayle Lynch agreed to email a copy of the
response to Members of the Area Committee for their retention.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 3rd April, 2008

Page 4

82

Well-being Report
Referring to Minute 59 of the meeting held on 13th December 2007, the
Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on the WellBeing budget.
The following documents were appended to the report for the information/
comment of the meeting:(a)
(b)

Breakdown of revenue spend by theme 2007/08 (Appendix 1 refers)
Breakdown of capital spend by theme 2007/08 (Appendix 2 refers)

Dayle Lynch, North West Area Management presented the report and
responded to Members’ queries and comments.
Detailed discussion ensued on the contents of the report and appendices.
In summary, specific reference was made to the following issues:•

•

•

•

•

West Yorkshire Trading Standards/Enforcement Project – the need for
the Community Safety sub-group to consider further funding in terms of
indentifying their future priorities
Highways/Woodsley Road Environmental Improvements Project– the
need for a meeting with senior City Development officers to discuss
further mainstream funding opportunities to develop the area to it’s full
potential
Parks and Countryside/Becketts Park Play Area Project - the need for
North West Area Management to investigate Section 106 spend in
relation to Phase 1 of the Filter Beds development
Sandy Lane Footpath Project (2007/08) – clarification on progress
made with regard to the creation order previously funded by the Area
Committee
the need for Highways/Streetscene Services to be informed that it was
this Committee’s policy that any funding given towards replacement of
traditional stone paving must be only carried out in locations outside a
Conservation area

RESOLVED –
(a)
That the contents of the report and appendices be noted.
(b)
That this Committee notes those ‘in-principle’ decisions totalling
£19,000 to fund projects in the financial year 2008/9 as outlined in
Section 3.2 of the report.
(c)
That approval be given to fund those posts or projects to which no
formal ongoing commitment had been made as outlined in Section 3.3
of the report.
(d)
That the revenue projects as detailed in Section 4.1 of the report be
dealt with as follows:-

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 3rd April, 2008

Page 5

Project
•

Hyde Park Festive
Lights

Delivery Organisation

Decision

Leeds Lights

Agreed £11,100

•

Community
Website

North Hyde Park
Neighbourhood
Association

Refused

•

Hyde Park Unity
Day

Hyde Park Unity Day
Committee

Agreed £5,000 for
the next three years

•

Kirkstall Festival
2008

Kirkstall Festival
Committee

Agreed £5,000 for
the next three
years

•

Seagulls
Community
Repaint

Seagulls

Agreed £11,000

•

Burley Networking
Together

Novas Scarman Trust

Withdrawn at the
request of the
organisation

•

Design Statements Planning Sub Group

•

A660 Cycle Lane
Feasibility (Phase
2)

Leeds Cycling Action
Group

Agreed £3,877

•

Art house films at
Hyde Park

Hyde Park Picture
House

Agreed £6,000 for
2008/09 and
£4,000 for 2009/10

•

Parish Hall
Upgrade

Wrangthorn Church

Agreed £5,000

•

Rosebank
Millennium Green
Trust

Rosebank Millennium
Green Trust

Agreed £5,000

•

Bin Yard Project

Hyde Park Source

Agreed £6,000

•

Woodhouse Ridge
Maintenance

Woodhouse Ridge
Action Group

Agreed £7,500 for
2008/09 and
£7,500 for 2009/10

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 3rd April, 2008

Page 6

Agreed £15,000 as
a central pot

•
(e)

West Yorkshire Trading
Standards

Enforcement
Project

That the capital projects as detailed in Section 5.4.1 of the report be
dealt with as follows:Delivery Organisation

Project

Decision

•

Al-Haqq Education Trust
Al-Haqq
Supplementary
SchoolRefurbishment and
Alterations

•

Woodsley Road
Environmental
Improvements

Highways

Agreed £40,000

•

Festival Light
Design Project

Leeds Lights

Agreed £3,100

•

Access Ramp

Hyde Park Picture
House

Agreed £5,000
(£2,500 Headingley
and £2,500 central
budget)

•

Becketts Park Play
Area

Parks and Countryside

Agreed in principle,
pending Ward
Member discussion
and consideration
to any capital
overspend

•

Spen Road/North
Parade Railings

West Park Residents
Association

Agreed £3,135

•

Replacement
Yorkshire Stone
Paving
Grass Verge and
Pathway
Improvements
Fund

Streetscene Sub-Group

Agreed £10,000
central budget

Streetscene Sub-Group

Agreed £10,000
central budget

•

(f)

Agreed £2,000

Refused

That a report on city-wide Section 106 monies be submitted to a future
Area Committee for consideration.

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 3rd April, 2008

Page 7

(Councillor K Hussain joined the meeting at 7.30 pm prior to discussion of the
above item)
(Councillor D Morton joined the meeting at 7.35 pm during discussions of the
Community Website project)
83

Forum and Sub Group Update Report
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report
providing Members with full minutes and key messages from ward forums and
sub groups that have taken place since the last Area Committee meeting.
Detailed discussion ensued on the contents of the report and appendices.
In summary, specific reference was made to the following key issues:•
•

the excellent work undertaken by North West Area Management in relation
to a recent clean up campaign
the service model in relation to the city’s Graffiti Strategy and how it
allows for the issue to be tackled effectively

RESOLVED (a)
That the contents of the report and appendices be noted.
(b)
That this Committee agrees to the request from the Planning Sub
Group to give support in asserting the importance of sustainable
transport modes, other than the private car.
84

Area Manager's Report
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report from the
North West Area Manager providing Members with information about issues
which were not addressed elsewhere on the agenda.
The report provided an update on Little London; Headingley Town and District
Centre Scheme; Royal Park Primary School; Headingley Primary
School;Hyde Park DPPO and Kirkstall District Centre.
The Chair officially welcomed Steve Crocker, the newly appointed Area
Manager, to the meeting and invited him to comment on his future aims and
priorities facing the North West (Inner) Area Committee.
Jason Singh, North West Area Management presented the report and
responded to Members’ queries and comments.
Detailed discussion ensued on the contents of the report.
In summary, specific reference was made to the following key issues:•

•

DPPOs - the need to consult with the Chief Officer (Legal, Licensing and
Registration) with regards to the wording contained within DPPO legal
notices
Kirkstall District Centre - current developments/opportunities

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 3rd April, 2008

Page 8

RESOLVED – That the contents of the report and the updates provided be
noted.
85

Shared Housing Action Plan for 2008
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report on the
Shared Housing Action Plan for 2008.
Appended to the report were copies of the following documents for the
information/comment of the meeting:(a)

2008 Shared Housing Action Plan produced by the Shared Housing
Group (Appendix 1 refers)
A map of the Area of Housing Mix (AoHM) (Appendix 2 refers)

(b)

At the request of the Chair, representatives from the Shared Housing Group
were invited to comment on the key issues contained in the report.
RESOLVED – That the contents of the report and appendices be noted and
welcomed.
86

Housing Strategy Report
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report advising
Members on the progress in formulating a housing strategy and the timetable
for finalising the strategy and an accompanying plan.
Appended to the report was a copy of a document entitled “Housing Strategy
for the Area of Housing Mix (Framework) for the information/ comment of the
meeting.
At the request of the Chair, Huw Jones from re’new was invited to highlight
the key issues contained in the report.
Detailed discussion ensued on the contents of the report and appendices.
In summary, specific reference was made to the following key issues:•
•
•
•
•

the need to maintain recreational land for children’s play
the need for a paper on HMO licensing to be prepared for future
discussion by the Area Committee
the need to apply for additional powers and to tackle landlords
the need for planning guidance on affordable homes and for the
Council to lobby government
the need to focus on discretionary licenses

RESOLVED –
(a)
That the contents of the report and appendices be noted and
welcomed.
(b)
That a report on HMO licensing be submitted to a future Area
Committee for discussion.
Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 3rd April, 2008

Page 9

(Councillor K Hussain left the meeting at 9.00pm during discussions of the
above item)
87

Revision and Renewal of the 'To Let' Boards code
The Director of City Development submitted a report seeking Members
comments on the proposed revisions to the ‘To Let’ Boards Initiative and the
renewal of the ‘Area of Special Control’.
Andrew Crates, Community Planner presented the report and responded to
Members’ queries and comments.
Detailed discussion ensued on the contents of the report.
In summary, specific reference was made to the following key issues:
that consideration be given to including The Turnways and Laurel Bank
Court within the boundaries of the Area of Special Control
(this proposal was agreed and acknowledged by the Area Committee)
• that consideration be given to including the area between Queen’s Road
and Hyde Park Road within the boundaries of the Area of Special Control
(this proposal was agreed and acknowledged by the Area Committee)
• the need to extend the benefit of the ‘To Let’ boards initiative across a
wider area
•

RESOLVED (a)
That the contents of the report and appendices be noted.
(b)
That this Committee notes the proposed revisions to the ‘To Let’
Boards Code and the re-application to the Department for Communities
and Local Government (DCLG) for a further Direction to continue the
current initiative.
(c)
That the comments raised by Members at the Area Committee meeting
on the proposed revisions to the ‘To Let’ Boards Initiative and the
renewal of the ‘Area of special control’ be fed into to the Planning
Group for discussion at their meeting on 13th February 2008.
88

Date and Time of Next Meeting
Thursday 3rd April 2008 at 7.00 pm (venue to be confirmed)

(The meeting concluded at 9.25 pm)

Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting
to be held on Thursday, 3rd April, 2008

Page 10

Matters Arising from previous meeting
The below provides an update on issues from the last Area Committee, which do not
appear on the agenda of 3rd April 2008.
78 HMO Campaign – the Chair wrote to the Council’s Chief Planning Officer
requesting a delegation from Leeds to lobby the Planning Minister for a change to
the Use Classes Order. A response has yet to be received.
78 DPPO – there was incorrect wording used in some final order documents,
however this did not invalidate the orders as the correct wording was used when the
orders were approved by Licensing Panel and it is this wording that forms the legal
basis of the order. The wording has now been amended. The issue has been
referred to the relevant scrutiny board.
78 Alders/BHS Appeal – the Chair wrote to the Planning Inspector, which was hand
delivered on the morning of the appeal hearing.
81 (b) Hawksworth Wood CA – have now been in receipt of their green bin.
81 (d) Ralph Thoresby – a response has been received and circulated to Members.
82 Well-being Report – a multi agency scoping meeting has been held to discuss
development of an improvement scheme for Woodsley Road.
82 Well-being Report - phase 1 of the Filter Beds Scheme, S106 from this spent on
the refurbishment of the skate park at Becketts Park.
82 Well-being Report - Sandy Lane Footpath project to have the footpath adopted
by Leeds City Council. A creation order is presently being developed which will lead
to the final adoption. No specific timescale can be given as this will be determined
by any objections raised.
Rosebank Millennium Green – the Chair wrote to Parks & Countryside regarding
mainstreaming the maintenance of the Green, a response has been received and
circulated to Members.
Affordable Housing – the Chair wrote to the Director of City Development on this
matter. A response has been received and circulated to Members.
Future Area Committee Agenda Items
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Area Delivery Plan – July 2008
Sports Pitch Strategy Update – July 2008
Forums & Sub Group Review – July 2008
Community Centre Pricing Policy – July 2008
Partnership Working Proposals – July 2008

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12

Agenda Item 8
Originator: Helen Bowker
Tel: 0113 3952827

Report of the Director of Environment & Neighbourhoods
Inner North West Area Committee
Date: 3rd April 2008
Subject: Forum and Sub Group Update Report
Electoral Wards Affected:

Specific Implications For:

ALL

Equality and Diversity

ü

Community Cohesion

ü

Narrowing the Gap

ü

Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Delegated Executive
Function available
for Call In

Council
Function

ü

Delegated Executive
Function not available for
Call In Details set out in the
report

Executive Summary
This report provides Members with full minutes and key messages from ward forums and
sub groups that have taken place since the last Area Committee. It also provides
information on future meeting dates for the Committee’s forums and sub groups.

1.0

Background Information

1.1

The following forums and sub groups are covered by this report. Minutes are
appended, if meetings have taken place since the last Area Committee.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Hyde Park and Woodhouse Forum (Appendix 1)
Kirkstall Burley Forum (Appendix 2)
Children and Young People’s sub group (Appendix 3)
Students in the Community sub group (Appendix 4)
Planning sub group (Appendix 5)
Streetscene sub group (Appendix 6)
Joint Graffiti (Streetscene & Community Safety) sub group (Appendix 7)
Shared Housing sub group (Appendix 8)

Page 13

2.0

Future meeting dates

2.1

The following provides details, where they have been set, of future dates and
venues of the Committee’s forums and sub groups:Hyde Park and Woodhouse Forum - Wednesday 23rd April, 7pm, Quarry Mount
School.
Kirkstall Burley Forum - Tuesday 17th June, 7pm, Burley Methodist Church.
Children and Young People’s sub group - to be confirmed.
Students and the Community sub group - to be confirmed.
Planning sub group – Wednesday 9th April, 9am, Civic Hall.
Streetscene sub group - to be confirmed.
Joint Graffiti (Streetscene and Community Safety) sub group – to be confirmed.
Shared Housing sub group - 22nd April, 2pm and 1st July, 2pm at Civic Hall.

3.0

Recommendations

3.1

The Area Committee is asked to:
a) Note the contents of the minutes and associated key messages;
b) Decide whether it agrees to the request from the Planning Sub Group, to give
support to the development of a Park and Ride scheme serving the A660
corridor, at or adjacent to the Boddington Hall site;
c) Decide whether it agrees to the request from the Planning Sub Group, to give
support in ensuring that users of alternative modes of transport should not be
inconvenienced by private car traffic and that there should be greater equality
amongst road users; and
d) Decide whether it agrees to the request from the Planning Sub Group, to give
support in lobbying for greater provision of Affordable Housing in Inner North
West Leeds.

Page 14

APPENDIX 1

Hyde Park & Woodhouse Forum
Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 13th February 2008, 7pm
Burley Lodge Centre
Present:

Councillor Penny Ewens
Victoria Mitchell
Dave Bowen
Alan Smith
Sara Gill
Katie Black
Janet Bailey

Dr M Nawaz

Chair, LCC Ward Member
npower
Leeds Federated Housing
Local resident
Leeds University Students Union
Leeds University Students Union
South Headingley Community
Association and Friends of Woodhouse
Moor
North Hyde Park Neighbourhood
Association
Leeds University Students Union
Leeds Met Students Union
Headingley Liberal Democrats
Leeds University
South Headingley Community
Association
Rosebank Millennium Green Trust

Helen Bowker
David Gomersall
Inspector David Bugg
Nick Hunt

North West Area Management, LCC
Environmental Enforcement, LCC
West Yorkshire Police
Highways, LCC

Isobel Sidebottom
Christine Cooper
Alice Cudworth
Chris Lovell
Amanda Jackson
Sue Buckle

Officers in
Attendance:

1.0

Minutes of last meeting and matters arising

1.1

Councillor Ewens welcomed everyone to the February meeting of the
forum. Apologies were noted from Councillor Hussain, Katie Griffiths,
Margaret Spink, Pam Bone, Freda Matthews, Rick Witt, Amit Roy and
Andy Beresford.

1.2

Minutes of the previous meeting held on 14th November 2007 were
approved by the group as a correct record.

1.3

Referring to minute 7.4 of the previous minutes, it was asked whether a
deputation had been taken to Full Council on the matter of Leeds Girls’
High School as requested by Councillor Hussain. Councillor Ewens
was not aware of any deputation taken to Full Council.

Page 15

APPENDIX 1
1.4

Sue Buckle informed the group of the forthcoming Royal Park
Community Consortium meeting on 20th February, 7pm at Brudenell
Primary School. Councillor Ewens sends her apologies.

1.5

Janet Bailey requested that the Hyde Park and Woodhouse DPPO be
discussed first under AOB.

1.6

Councillor Ewens moved item 3, Neighbourhood Policing Teams
Update, to the end of the agenda so Inspector David Bugg could
familiarise himself with any issues that may be brought up throughout
the course of the meeting.

2.0

Community warmth scheme

2.1

Victoria Mitchell, Energy Savings Advisor at npower presented the
community warmth scheme which is being run in conjunction with
Leeds City Council. She then responded to the groups queries and
comments and circulated information on the scheme.

3.0

University Update

3.1

Amanda Jackson, Community Policy Officer at University of Leeds,
presented the annual Neighbourhood Helpline report for 2006-07 and
responded to the groups queries and comments.

3.2

In summary, specific references were made to the following issues:•
•
•

the majority of calls were around anti-social behaviour and noise
nuisance;
calls were primarily focused in Hyde Park and Headingley,
especially around Ash Grove and the Hyde Park cinema;
peak times were in October, February, June and July.

3.3

Amanda Jackson also referred to a ‘Community Guide’ that was being
circulated this year. She also reported that Sara Gill from the Students
Union would be doing talks with residents in Halls accommodation
regarding responsible waste disposal and recycling. Sue Buckle asked
whether attendance would be compulsory and was interested in being
involved in the communication process.

3.4

A new community environmental working group had been established
at the University with relevant experts involved.

3.5

In relation to students bringing cars into the city Amanda Jackson
reported that they are advised by the University not to bring a car as
are unable to park on campus. Nick Hunt queried the new green travel
plan that had been introduced at Leeds Met and was now displacing
car parking to the streets surrounding the Headingley campus.

Page 16

APPENDIX 1
3.6

A member of the forum asked for clarification on how the University are
contributing to and supporting the Greenstreets project. The group
would also like any non-students to help volunteer.

3.7

A Community Strategy (copies of which are available on the website)
was produced last year and is up for review in June/July. The strategy
will be going to the community housing forum for consultation.

4.0

Enforcement Update

4.1

David Gomersall, Environmental Enforcement, presented an update
and responded to any queries and comments.

4.2

In summary, specific references were made to the following issues:•

•

•

•

•

waste in gardens and bins in streets were the two main issues for
this ward although they are the lowest priorities for the department
after fly tipping, commercial waste and littering;
one landlord had been prosecuted in the ward although asked for
members of the public to report any problems with landlords and be
prepared to give evidence in court, otherwise difficult to prosecute;
there are problems with the OPAL student developments on Burley
Road regarding adequate waste disposal (Leeds University
Students Union forwarded the relevant contact details for OPAL);
that in relation to there not being enough bins in the area especially
by bus stops, need more people to highlight this to the council and
the local ward members. (Cllr Ewens responded and agreed for any
issues to be sent to her and she would then forward them on to the
relevant officer);
need to improve public awareness around black bins being left on
the streets instead of in yards and general street untidiness.

4.3

Sara Gill suggested that the department do a bins audit and that they
take the initiative as need workable solutions to problems.
David
Gomersall responded and highlighted that an audit had been done but
would follow up this issue with the Streetscene team.

5.0

Highways Update

5.1

Nick Hunt, Senior Traffic Engineer in Highways Services, presented an
update on the Mouchel Parkman study and responded to questions
and comments on the parking proposals.

5.2

In summary, specific references were made to the following issues:•

two areas have been identified where restrictions will be
implemented, these are Cliff Road/Woodhouse Street and Shay
Street/Holborns and should be in place during 2008/09;

Page 17

APPENDIX 1
•

•
•

•

the need to arrange consultations with local residents who will
be affected by the new parking proposals. North West Area
Management to arrange two consultation events;
the need to encourage students to leave cars at home;
the need for similar restrictions to be implemented along
Brudenell Road and for parking to be formalised as access is
currently being restricted there;
the need for traffic calming measures to be introduced on
Rosebank Road/Millennium Green. Nick Hunt replied that
speeding and joyriding issues were not a high priority and would
afford budget to areas where accidents are high.

6.0

Review of Extended Services

6.1

Dawn Appleyard, Extended Services Coordinator, presented an update
on extended services in the ward and responded to comments and
questions.

6.2

In summary, specific references were made to the following issues:•
•
•
•

the priorities for the area are 0-19 years although extends
beyond that working with parents;
Extended Services is changing rapidly and there are 40 clusters
in the city at different stages in terms of progress;
there is a need for more joined up working and co-ordinating of
activities across the city;
there is a need to use greenspace for play areas for extended
service activities, however there is a lack of greenspace in the
ward. Cllr Ewens to discuss this with Sean Flesher from Parks
and Countryside.

7.0

Neighbourhood Policing Teams Update

7.1

Inspector Dave Bugg has replaced Inspector Coldwell and is now the
Inspector for Hyde Park and Woodhouse Neighbourhood Policing
Team (NPT). He introduced himself and some of the changes that
would be occurring in the new NPTs.

7.2

In summary, specific references were made to the following changes:•
•
•

•

the new NPT will be delivering on improved call management
and neighbourhood policing;
the need to recruit new PCSOs as numbers are stagnant at
moment;
the changes in the NPTs will be implemented from 3rd March
2008 and cover will be from 7am–12am Monday to Wednesday
and 7am–2am Thursday to Sunday;
Inspector Bugg encouraged local residents to call Belle Vue
NPT direct with any immediate issues;

Page 18

APPENDIX 1
•

Inspector Bugg clarified that there will be patrols on Woodhouse
Moor after concern that there wasn’t.

8.0

AOB and key messages for Inner Area Committee

8.1

Janet Bailey from the DPPO Consultative Committee presented an
update on the DPPO. Documents to be circulated with the minutes.

8.2

Sue Buckle highlighted a complaint about the current work of Southern
Electric Company in the ward on the city-wide street lighting scheme.
Cllr Ewens responded and agreed for any complaints to be sent to her
which she would then pass on to Ian Moore.

8.3

Sara Gill from Leeds University Union noted that a green bin recycling
pilot would be introduced on Brudenell Mount. Sara Gill to send a
summary of the pilot scheme to Cllr Ewens who will then pass onto
officers in enforcement.

8.4

There were no key messages for the next Inner Area Committee.

9.0

Date of next meeting

9.1

The date of the next meeting to be circulated to the group once have
confirmed with Councillor Hussain, who will be chair at the next
meeting. Suggested for some time in April.

Page 19

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20

APPENDIX 2
Neighbourhoods and Housing Department
North West Area Management Office
Kirkstall Burley Forum
Minutes of the meeting held on 26th February 2008, 7.00pm
Milford Sports Club
Present:

Cllr Liz Minkin
Cllr John Illingworth
Cllr Bernard Atha
Tony Ray
Steve Harris
Janet Storey
Linda Longbottom
Brian Connell
Pauline Hawkins
Keith Collridge

Ken & Sheila Waterworth
Stuart & Jeanette Hawkins
John Preston

Chair, LCC Ward Councillor
LCC Kirkstall Ward Councillor
LCC Kirkstall Ward Councillor
Consultant
Beecroft Primary/ Kirkstall Festival
Becketts Park resident
Burley resident
Kirkstall St Stephens Church
Kirkstall St Stephens Church
Gilbert & Sandfords Residents
Association
Gilbert & Sandfords Residents
Association
Kirkstall Festival
Labour Party
Labour Parliamentary Candidate
Kirkstall Festival Committee
Haddon Avenue Resident
Haddon Avenue Resident
Haddon Avenue Resident
Local Resident
Local Resident
Hawksworth Wood Community
Association
KVCA
Local Residents
BTCV, Hollybush Centre

Sarah Charlton
Andrew Crates

North West Area Management Team
Community Planner

Robert Marriott
Catherine Simpson
Lucinda Yeadon
Rachel Reeves
Catherine Simpson
Jean Bosomworth
Jean Mellor
T Hargreaves
Helen Bowker
Joe McGrath
Steve Rennie

Officers in
Attendance:

ACTION
1.0

INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES

1.1

Apologies were received from Ken Stratford, Ken Torode and Linda
Cullen.
Councillor Minkin welcomed everyone to the meeting and explained that
normal business would be carried out first followed by a focussed
session on Vision for Kirkstall.

Page 21

APPENDIX 2
2.0

MATTERS ARISING
2.1 – Kirkstall District Centre; Espalier and currently working on revised
proposals.
2.6 – The Administration has not been persuaded that the A65 scheme
should be required to go through the full planning process, however,
residents living within 200m of the A65 will continue to receive updates
about the works.
2.7 – Alders; A result from the appeal should be known in early April.
6.1 – Kirkstall Forge; Section 106 planning gain monies are still
being discussed for this development. The Forum agreed that they
would not support these monies being spent on Horsforth
roundabout.

Key
Message

7.1 – War Memorial plaques; these were appreciated on Armistice Day.
7.2 – Kirkstall Festival; The Forum does not agree with the charges
made to this community festival by other organisations such as the
Police, ambulance and local authority.

Key
Message

7.3 – Festive Lights; The Gilbert & Sandford Residents Association are
looking to get sponsorship for these lights for Christmas 2008. Morrisons
have agreed £200 and other businesses have shown interest.
7.6 – There is an issue with parking on Queenswood Road by
commuters and students. Haddon Avenue is having similar problems.
3.0

MAJOR LOCAL DEVELOPMENTS

3.1

Butcher Hill Fields
Abbey Grange School in conjunction with Powerleague are
proposing to build indoor training facilities on Butcher Hill playing
fields. The proposals are intensive with a pavilion, lighting and
parking and the space would be used for football and hockey
training. Concerns were raised about the removal of this green
space from the use of local people.
Parking – Cllr Minkin to follow up whether there are proposals for
parking restrictions in the area.

3.2

Woodside View
It was noted that trees in this area have been recently felled and thick
shrubbery cut back. As this is within private ownership and there were
no tree preservation order in place the owner was acting legally.

Page 22

SC to
write

Key
Message

APPENDIX 2
4.0

VISION FOR KIRKSTALL

4.1

Tony Ray explained that the idea behind this document was that it
should be broader than planning and design issues and should be action
based. It was agreed that the document would not be a formal
‘Supplementary Planning Document’. It was agreed that it would be a
local action plan, encapsulating the aspirations of the local community.

4.2

Cllr Minkin noted that there was good representation at the meeting from
around the ward, and that it was important to involve all these
communities in the work.

4.3

A discussion was had about how to progress the work. It was agreed
that a questionnaire asking about how people would like to see the area
develop should be widely circulated. It was also agreed that a launch
event would be held on Tuesday 3rd June at Milford Sports Club. This
would be an afternoon/ evening drop in for the community to find out
what is involved. Local publications can be used to promote the work
including Kirkstall Matters, Hawkseye View and St Stephens Church
magazine. Parents Associations in schools could be a way of
information reaching families.

4.4

There are a number of groups and associations around the ward that
could be involved in this work, as noted below:
Moor Grange Action Group – Linda Cullen
Hawksworth Wood Community Association – Ken & Barbara Salter &
Steve Rennie
Gilbert & Sandfords Residents Association – Keith Collridge
KVCA – Ken & Sheila Waterworth, Ken Stratford
Vespers - Pauline Hawkins
St Stephens Church – Ken Torode
Haddons – Jean Bosomworth, Jean Mellor and Terry Hargreaves
Queenswoods – Janet Storey
Spen Hill Residents Association & Old Oaks - Lars Jeuken
Beckett Park Community Association – to be contacted
Stanmores – Linda Longbottom
Vinery Road – Deirdre West to be contacted
A representative from Lawnswood & Abbey Grange Schools – possibly
from the School Council.
Abbeydales – Satwant Rait to be contacted
Cath Simpson - Edens
Steve Harris – Woodsides

Page 23

APPENDIX 2
5.0

AOB

5.1

There are ongoing litter problems on Haddon Avenue. SC to refer to
Streetscene. Also to find out when the gulleys are next due to be
cleaned.

SC

5.2

A drain is blocked at the corner of Kirkstall Hill and Eden Drive. SC to
refer to Streetscene

SC

5.3

SC to look at whether any Highways work is programmed for Station
Parade in 08/09.

SC

6.0

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

6.1

Tuesday 17th June, 7pm venue – Burley Methodist Church, Cardigan
Lane

Page 24

APPENDIX 3
Inner North West Area Committee
Children & Young People Sub Group
24th January 2008
Minutes
Action

Attendance:
Councillor Ewens - Chair (PE)
Councillor Illingworth (JI)
Sarah Charlton, NW Area Management (SC)
Suzanne Wainwright, LCC Youth Service (SW)
Apologies:
Emma Manners, Youthpoint
Cllr Chapman
1.0

Minutes of the last meeting

1.1

Agreed as a true record.

2.0

Matters Arising

2.1

3.3 – Chris Bolam may have a copy of a map showing green spaces across the SC
area. SC to follow up.

3.0

Fixed Play

3.1

It was suggested that it would be useful for Leeds Play Network to attend a SC
future meeting to discuss plans for play work taking place over the summer. SC
to invite LPN.

3.2

It was noted that for many years there has been an aspiration by the local
community in Hawksworth Wood to have a play area and skate park on the
estate. There is a possibility that there may be some S106 monies available for
this from the development at Kirkstall Forge.

3.3

Members asked about when the next review of the Fixed Play Strategy was SC
likely to be as they would like to play an integral role in it. In particular it was
agreed that any change in demographics needs to be reflected in the strategy.
SC to liaise with Parks & Countryside.

4.0

Research Into Children’s Lifestyles

4.1

Cllr Illingworth updated the group about a piece of research work being carried
out by students at Leeds University, and a similar piece of work being carried out
by Education Leeds. The Educations Leeds work is around children’s lifestyles
and is an anonymous computer based survey that children will access through
1
Page 25

APPENDIX 3
school, this is aimed at both primary and secondary school children. The
research being carried out by the University has more detailed information on
individual children as it involves face to face structured interviews.
5.0

Service Updates and Ward Issues

5.1

There are some issues with persistent non-attenders at Lawnswood School
causing anti social behaviour problems. The Youth Service and Youth Offending
Service are working with some of these young people.

5.2

SW updated that the Youth Service had appointed 7 new youth workers to the
North West.

5.3

The Joint Area Review (JAR) is now complete and a report on the findings is due
out in June.

6.0

Key Messages

6.1

That the Children & Young People sub group would like to play an integral
part in any review of the Fixed Play Strategy for Leeds.

7.0

Date & Time of Next Meeting

7.1

Thursday 27th March, 5.30pm, Civic Hall

2
Page 26

APPENDIX 4

North West Inner Area Committee
Students and the Community Group
th
5 February 2008, 2.30 pm, Leeds University Union
Present:
Cllr James Monaghan (Chair)
Richard Brown, Leeds City Council
Helen Bowker, Leeds City Council
Zahid Butt, Leeds City Council
Sarah Downie, Leeds Metropolitan Students’ Union
Cllr Penny Ewens
Sara Gill, Leeds University Students’ Union
Sue Holmes, Leeds Met University
Amanda Jackson, University of Leeds
Stewart Lewis, Leeds City Council
Jacqueline McNee, Leeds Metropolitan Students’ Union
Andy Milnes, Leeds City Council
Carole Munsey, West Yorkshire Police
Sarah Powell, Pickard Properties
Colin Ross, Pickard Properties
Peter Warneford, Leeds City Council
Anne-Marie Watkinson, UNIPOL
Joe Yusuf, Leeds University Union

Apologies:
Cllr Sue Bentley
Cllr Elizabeth Minkin
Sue Buckle, South Headingley Residents’ Association
Jami Dixon, Leeds University Union
Max Farrar, Leeds Metropolitan University
Aidan Grills, Leeds University Students’ Union
David Gomersall, Leeds City Council
Rachel Harkness, Headingley Network
Richard Tyler, HMO Lobby
Action
1.0

Welcome and Introductions
Councillor Monaghan welcomed representatives to the meeting.

2.0

Minutes of the last meeting and matters arising

2.1

The minutes of the last meeting were agreed as an accurate
record.

2.2

Regarding minute 4.2, a meeting had taken place co-ordinators of Environmental
the universities’ Neighbourhood Helpline and the council’s ‘out of Health &
hours’ noise service. The meeting was constructive and the Universities
Page 27

APPENDIX 4
university will offer mediation in cases reported to the council that
involve students. There was also discussion on developing
opportunities for the services to advertise one another. Since the
meeting referrals between the services has commenced.
3.0

Report on the operation of the Neighbourhood Helpline

3.1

A report summarising the operation of the Helpline from August
2006 – July 2007 was circulated to the meeting.

3.2

Amanda Jackson presented the key points within the report,
highlighting that:
• Leeds Metropolitan University had joined the Helpline mid
way through the period covered by the report, which
resulted in their under representation in some of the data.
• There had been a 24% increase in the number of
complaints within the Hyde Park and Woodhouse ward.
• There had been no complaints from the Kirkstall ward.
• Peaks in complaints were observed at the start of
semesters and when students change accommodation.
• Ideas for developing the service from partner organisations
and local residents are welcomed by the Helpline.
• Business cards promoting the service are available from
Amanda.

4.0

Student Changeover Update

4.1

Each organisation was requested to give a brief update on
progress with regards to their planning for the 2008 student
accommodation changeover.

4.2

Leeds City Council’s NW Area Management Team:
• Meetings had taken place between Streetscene Services
and Area Management. These meetings considered
additional resources and innovative ideas for handling the
peak in waste.
• The use of skips to deal with the overflow of waste
during the student changeover period was considered Key Message
and work is being undertaken to establish costs. It was
noted that regular collections would be required and that
the skips may need to be lockable in order to prevent bag
slashers.
• Communications with students and landlords are to be
stepped up, as activities and events are confirmed. A Key Message
short story has already been submitted to appear in the
council’s newspaper.

4.3

Streetscene Services:
• Waste collection days will remain unchanged during
the student changeover period, however increased Key Message
levels of staff and waste vehicles will be in operation.
The aim will be to totally clear each area on the usual
collection day.
Page 28

APPENDIX 4
•

•
•
•

4.4

The possibility of sorting all waste cleared during the
changeover period, allowing enhanced levels of recycling,
is currently being considered.
The amnesty for accredited landlords disposing of certain
types of commercial waste will be repeated.
Storage space for reusable items can be made available at
the Kirkstall waste site.
The use of skips in hotspots looks likely, however
innovative ideas on preventing looters and commercial
dumping in these facilities are required. Banners on the
skips will be required to promote their purpose.

Leeds University Union (including the Green Streets project):
• The Leave Leeds Tidy website is still operating, but needs
updating with information for 2008.
• The issue of personal and confidential information being
disposed of by students could be highlighted using the
Knowledge website.
• ‘Moving out talks’ will be held in the university halls of
residence.
• Green Streets will operate for a 5 week period. For the first
two weeks halls of residence will be targeted, before the
project moves to other residential areas, distributing and
collecting green bags for students to place reusable items
in.
• Areas where Green Streets requires support are in the
distribution of bags and information on the scheme, as well
as provision of space within a venue that is close to the
student areas, so that items can be stored and sorted.
• It was commented that electrical items collected by Green
Streets required PAT testing before they can be
redistributed and it was suggested that the council might be
able to assist in this matter.
• The possibility of a Green Streets shop within the
community was discussed, although a venue for this has
would need to be found. Area Management will look at
options for providing space within community centres.

4.5

Pickard Properties:
• Accommodation managed by this estate agent has
staggered dates for changeover of tenants.
• From April tenants will be sent comprehensive information
on the correct procedure for vacating properties. This will
include information on waste collection days and other
council services that are available.
• It was commented that the waste site amnesty for
accredited landlords was not advertised widely in 2007.

4.6

UNIPOL:
• Meetings have been taking place between UNIPOL and
the universities.
• Communication with landlords was considered to be a key
area where UNIPOL can support the changeover project.
Page 29

Richard
Brown/Helen
Bowker
Richard
Brown/Helen
Bowker

APPENDIX 4
4.7

Leeds Metropolitan University Union:
• The annual Bargain Hunt event will be held in May. At the
event participants will be targeted with information on
recycling.
• The collection of glass by the milk float will be operating
over the changeover period.

4.8

Environmental Health;
• Efforts will be made to provide information to landlords,
particularly those who are members of the accreditation
scheme.
• It was noted that the team is currently undergoing a
restructure and as such the manager for the NW area at
the time of the 2008 changeover period is currently
unknown.

4.9

University of Leeds:
• The university’s environmental working group, which has
the responsibility for overseeing the initiates relevant to the
environment, will be considering activities to support the
changeover project.
• A community guide will be produced, including information
on moving house. This guide will be brought to a
forthcoming meeting of the students and the community
group.

4.10 Leeds Metropolitan University:
• The student centred change team will be looking at
relevant issues.
• David Collett will continue to work on issues relevant to
university owned accommodation.
• It was queried if the proceeds from the ‘great student run’
will be made available as a contribution toward community
projects such as this, as had been discussed previously.
4.11 Throughout and following the updates from partner organisations,
the following points were also raised:
•

When temporary skips were trialled in 2006, there were a
number of problems with the operation of these. In
particular some commercial waste was dumped in the
council skips and some student waste was disposed of in
commercial skips.

•

It was noted that in the 2006 pilot, weekends were
particularly problematic, as the skips were not cleared over
the weekends.

•

Temporary recycling facilities were suggested as another
measure that could ease pressure on the existing bin
provision.

•

It was noted that in addition to the Green Streets project,
other organisation such as Freecycle and Freebay could
also be utilised by students.
Page 30

APPENDIX 4
•

It was commented that there was an opportunity for a social
enterprise to set up a project to sell on reusable items.

•

It was queried if it will be possible to attribute the success
from efforts made to promote recycling to the relevant
organisation who had undertaken the work. This could help
organisations to provide statistical information on recycling
performance to the government.

•

It was agreed that the Leave Leeds Tidy brand,
developed in 2007 by Leeds University Union, would Key Message
continue to be the prevalent brand for the changeover
campaign.

5.0

Any Other Business

5.1

It was queried if the neighbourhood wardens were able to cover
the Hyde Park area, or if they were ring fenced to Little London. It
was explained that the neighbourhood renewal funding for the
wardens was linked to the deprivation statistics in Little London.
However, on an operational basis there has been occasions when
the wardens have undertaken work across Hyde Park. It was
anticipated that this would apply during the changeover period.

6.0

Time and date of next meeting

6.1

20th March 2008, 2-4pm, Civic Hall

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32

APPENDIX 5

NORTH WEST MANAGEMENT
TEAM (INNER AREA)

PLANNING GROUP
13th February 2008 (9:00 – 10:00)
Civic Hall

Present:

Officer(s) in
Attendance

MINUTES
Cllr M Hamilton (Chair)
Headingley
Cllr S Bentley
Weetwood
David Hall
Far Headingley Resident Rep.
Freda Matthews
Hyde Park and Woodhouse Resident Rep.
Ken Torode
Kirkstall Resident Rep.

Richard Brown
Andrew Crates

North West Area Management Team
Community Planner
ACTION

1.0

APOLOGIES

1.1

Richard Tyler - Headingley Resident Rep.

1.2

MH noted that he needed to leave after item 4.0.

2.0

MINUTES OF LAST MEETING

2.1

DH referred to the discussion under Item 3.0. All agreed a key message to
request that Area Committee support the development of a Park and Ride
scheme serving the A660 corridor, at or adjacent to the Bodington Hall site.

AC

2.2

All agreed a key message querying the adequacy of the Highway Authority’s
proposals for the A660 in order to deal with the problems of traffic
congestion. It was felt that users of alternative modes of transport should not
be inconvenienced by the need move private car traffic through more
efficiently and that there should be greater equality amongst road users.

AC

3.0

NEIGHBOURHOOD DESIGN STATEMENTS UPDATE

3.1

AC reported that character area appraisals are continuing to take place in
relation to the emerging Headingley and Hyde Park NDS.

3.2

AC reported that a launch meeting for ‘A Vision for Kirkstall’ is to be held on
26th February. Local groups will be invited and it is hoped that a steering
group can be formed.

1
Page 33

APPENDIX 5
3.3

FM noted that a public launch event for the Little Woodhouse NDS had taken
place in January. Two character area appraisals / workshops are to be held
on 23rd February and 1st March.

3.4

SB noted that there was interest from local residents in doing an NDS in
Cookridge.

4.0

UNIVERSITY OF LEEDS PROPERTY

4.1

It was agreed to draw up a list of questions and queries to put to Robert
Sladdin and Dennis Hopper of the University of Leeds. AC agreed to forward
the list of questions to them in order that they may attend a future meeting
having investigated the responses.

4.2

The following questions were agreed:
1. It would be useful to have an outline/update on the university's
strategy for student accommodation, particularly given the proposed
sale of Bodington Hall.
2. What is the intended future for Fairburn House, Clarendon Road?
3. Update on what is happening at St Mark's Flats.
4. What is the intended future for the various remaining buildings/land
along the Headingley Lane area?
5. What is the intended future for Devonshire Hall?
6. What is the intended future for property along Springfield Mount?
7. Are there any mechanisms in place regarding co-operation with Leeds
Metropolitan University on property issues?
8. What is the University's policy on property disposal - are there any
restrictions on who property is sold to and, if so, why?

5.0

LDF / POLICY UPDATE

5.1

AC noted that aspects of the emerging Affordable Housing Supplementary
Planning Document had been discussed at the Shared Housing Group
meeting on 12th February, presented by Lois Pickering (Local Plans). All
agreed a key message to request the support of the Area Committee in
lobbying for greater provision of Affordable Housing in Inner North West
Leeds.

6.0

SIGNIFICANT APPLICATIONS AND APPEALS

6.1

It was noted that Abbey Grange C of E High School are in pre-application
discussions with regard to developing sports facilities at Butcher Hill fields.
The proposal is in conjunction with a partner, Powerleague. All expressed
concern about the impact of additional car parking, highway safety, building
on greenspace and floodlighting. AC to investigate and report back.

AC

6.2

AC presented the revised scheme for the Oddbins site. All agreed that the
proposals were a significant improvement on previous schemes. DH raised
some concern about the large glazed windows to the attic gable elements.
The scheme will be referred to Plans Panel West for a decision.

AC

2
Page 34

AC

AC

APPENDIX 5
6.3

FM noted that a number of properties bought by Accent properties in the
Little Woodhouse Area have now all been put up for sale.

6.4

AC noted that RB was to leave the Council shortly. All thanked him for his
assistance whilst working in Area Management.

7.0

KEY MESSAGES

7.1

For Action – The Planning Group requests that the Area Committee support
the development of a Park and Ride scheme serving the A660 corridor, at or
adjacent to the Bodington Hall site.

AC

7.2

For Action – The Planning Group queries the adequacy of the Highway
Authority’s proposals for the A660 in order to deal with the problems of traffic
congestion. The group requests the support of the Area Committee in
ensuring that users of alternative modes of transport should not be
inconvenienced by private car traffic. The group considers that there should
be greater equality amongst road users.

AC

7.3

For Action – The Planning Group requests the support of the Area
Committee in lobbying for greater provision of Affordable Housing in Inner
North West Leeds.

8.0

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

8.1

12th March 2008 – 9am (Civic Hall)

3
Page 35

AC

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36

APPENDIX 6

Minutes of the Streetscene Sub-Group
12.30 pm, 18th March 2008, Civic Hall
PRESENT:

Cllr Elizabeth Minkin (Chair)
Cllr James Monaghan
Cllr Judith Chapman
Dayle Lynch, North West Area Management
Barrie Payne, Headingley Resident

APOLOGIES: Andy Milnes, Streetscene
Graham Hollings, Streetscene
Amratpal Panesar, WNW Homes
ACTION
1.0

Introduction and apologies

2.0

Minutes of the last meeting and matters arising

2.1

The minutes of the last meeting on 7th December 2007
were agreed as an accurate record.

2.2

(3.1) Letter to be sent to Cllr Steve Smith complaining
DL
about the time it has taken to get the additional litter bins
installed.

2.3

(3.1 &3.2) What is the latest update on the installation of
the new and reconditioned bins?

DL

2.4

(3.3) Want to ensure that the PFI Streetlighting scheme
includes the replacement of litter bins on lampposts.
Need to check this with Ian Moore.

DL

2.5

(3.4) Need to raise the issue of bins on the street as a
priority with Andrew Mason, new Chief Officer for
Streetscene at 27th March meeting.

2.6

(3.6) Quesionnaire on Streetscene services received by
Cllr Minkin, no question on occupancy numbers.

3.0

Well-being Funds

3.1

Yorkstone Paving
Need to get estimate of how much £10,000 will buy.
New areas put forward for investigating re: potential
funding are:
• Station Parade – re-exposing of cobbles
• Clarmont Road – paving
• Ashvilles – re-exposing of cobbles
• Granbys – re-exposing of cobbles
• Grosvenor Road – paving
Contact Streetlighting monitoring officer to discuss
storage of yorkstone whilst work is being undertaken.
Page 37

DL
DL/RH

DL

APPENDIX 6
3.2

Grass Verge & Footpath Improvements
Resurfacing of path between St. Stephen’s Underpass
and Headingley Station to get the go ahead. Highways
to be instructed to undertake the work.
Check with Panny to find out when results of grass
meshing pilot will be known.
An audit to be undertaken of grass verges in
Hawksworth Wood Estate, Queenswood Drive, Silk Mills
and Woodnook Drive. If any look in need of attention
then information to be passed back to Members and the
Streetscene sub-group.

4.0

Streetscene/Area Committee Meeting

4.1

Meeting due to take place on Thursday 27th March, 6pm
at Civic Hall. Reminder to be sent out to all Members.

4.2

Issues to be raised include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Bins left on streets
Area Committee funded replacement bins
Audit of bins, to ensure meeting occupants needs
Communications during Freshers’
Collection Dates effectively promoted
Green bags rather than green bins
Strategy for dealing with non collection
Graffiti

5.0

Any Other Business

5.1

There were no key messages
Headingley Mount area is suffering badly in terms of
streetscene. Following a walkabout the area on the
morning of 18th March, Barrie Payne reported that:
•
•
•
•
•

All green bins were contaminated;
Bins were overflowing;
Some bins did not have lids;
Bin contents being blown about the street; and
Some bins had been knocked over

5.2

Cllr Monaghan had asked whether the area could go to
green bin bags rather than bins. Would hopefully be
more successful than bins.

6.0

Date & time of next meeting

6.1

To be confirmed after May local elections.

Page 38

DL

DL

DL/RH

DL

APPENDIX 7

Minutes of the Joint Streetscene & Community Safety
Sub-Group on Graffiti
1 pm, Tuesday 18th March 2008, Civic Hall
PRESENT:

Cllr Sue Bentley (Chair)
Cllr James Monaghan
Cllr Elizabeth Minkin
Cllr Judith Chapman
Dayle Lynch, North West Area Management
Sgt Rick Lyon, West Yorkshire Police
Barrie Payne, Headingley Resident

APOLOGIES: Graham Hollings, City Services
Frieda Haley, City Services
Andy Milnes, City Services
Amratpal Panesar, WNW Homes
ACTION
1.0

Introduction and apologies

2.0

Minutes of the last meeting and matters arising

2.1

The minutes of the last meeting on 7th December 2007
were agreed as an accurate record.

2.2

(2.7) Need to ensure that this information is being sent
through – check with Frieda.

DL

2.3

(2.11) Is Janine McHugh still in post? What is the latest
on the NTL boxes?

DL

3.0

Update from Graffiti meeting 15th March

3.1

A meeting was called by Greg Mullholland in response
to rising levels of graffiti, particularly in Hyde Park &
Woodhouse. The meeting was attended by
approximately 25 people.

3.2

Although there was some frustration about the matter,
there was general acknowledgement that the Council’s
removal services was doing the best it could.

3.3

The police informed the meeting that 5 arrests had been
made in the last few weeks for graffiti (criminal damage).
Information has now been updated on the NPT website,
which can be accessed by members of the public.

3.4

General feeling that the police need to promote more
what they are doing about graffiti. Publicising
successes, arrests etc. Could use local publications
such as Kirkstall Matters, Headway, YEP and Parish
magazines.
Page 39

Police

APPENDIX 7
4.0

Any Other Business

4.1

Key Message : Sub-group asking Streetscene to
consider a pilot scheme whereby NTL/BT boxes are
subject to artwork, which hopefully deters tagging and
nuisance graffiti.

4.2

Cllr Minkin reported a sticker that was on a bus stop,
promoting ‘thebench405’ which was a graffiti shop in
Birmingham. This needs to be passed onto
enforcement.

4.3

An article to be put in About Leeds regarding graffiti,
how the Council and police are trying to tackle this
problem and the need for residents to report all
incidents.

5.0

Time & date of next meeting

5.1

To be confirmed after the May local elections.

Page 40

DL

DL

APPENDIX 8

Shared Housing Group Meeting
12 February 2008, 2.00pm, University House
th

Attendees:
Cllr Martin Hamilton (Chair)
Richard Brown, NW Area Management, Leeds City Council (LCC)
David Collett, Leeds Met
Andrew Crates, Development Department, LCC
Sara Gill, Leeds University Union
Huw Jones, Re’New
Mike Leonard, University of Leeds
Dayle Lynch, NW Area Management, LCC
Freda Matthews, Little Woodhouse Residents’ Association
Greg Miller, University of Leeds
Barry Payne, HMO Lobby
Diane Pedder, Leeds University Union
Miles Pickard, Leeds Property Association
Lois Pickering, Development Department, LCC
Rachel Unsworth, University of Leeds
Peter Warneford, Environmental Health, LCC
Anne-Marie Watkinson, Unipol
Apologies:
Martin Blakey, UNIPOL
Richard Tyler, HMO Lobby

1.0

Welcome and Introductions

2.0

Minutes of the last meeting and matters arising

2.1

Regarding minute 6.1 it was emphasised that the Knowledge community safety
campaign is independent of the Shared Housing Group.

2.2

The 2008 Shared Housing Action Plan (SHAP) is now available. Copies are held
at the NW Area Management Offices and arrangements can be made for the
collection of these by calling 0113 395 2830.

2.3

The minutes were agreed as an accurate record.

3.0

Work Programme and future meeting dates

3.1

A work programme for 2008 was circulated and comments were invited.

3.2

Huw Jones suggested that an additional item could be added to the April
meeting on mapping the distribution of the student population, based on data
from 2007.
Page 41

All

APPENDIX 8
3.3

Dianne Pedder suggested that an update on house hunting information for
students and Leeds University Union’s Student Rep scheme be placed on the
agenda for the July meeting.

3.4

It was agreed that the work programme be provided at each meeting of the
Shared Housing Group, alongside the SHAP, to allow agenda planning that
facilitates monitoring of the SHAP.

3.5

The meeting dates for 2008 are:
• 22nd April, 2-4 pm, Civic Hall
• 1st July, 2-4 pm, Civic Hall
• 9th September, 2-4 pm, Civic Hall
• 18th November, 2-4 pm, Civic Hall

4.0

Housing Strategy presentation

4.1

Huw Jones provided the meeting with a copy of a report that had recently been
presented to the Inner North West Area Committee. The report outlined the
development of a Housing Strategy for the Area of Housing Mix (AoHM).

4.2

With regards to the contents of the draft Strategy, the following issues were
highlighted as central to the Strategy:
• The aim of achieving sustainability in the AoHM housing market.
• Recent trends in the AoHM and likely future trends.
• The Strategy will have regard for the current demographic imbalance.
This will include looking at how to make the area more attractive to a
diverse range of potential residents.
• Implications of demographic shifts on school provision and the local
economy.
• Access to the housing market for first time buyers and the provision of
affordable housing.
• The Strategy will consider how to return empty properties to occupancy.
• The provision of student housing outside of the AoHM.
• The often prohibitive cost of ‘deconversion’ of shared homes back into
family homes.
• Developing means of managing the market within the AoHM, for example
through licensing.

4.3

Following the presentation the following questions and issues were raised:
• ‘Additional licensing’ is primarily concerned with improving health and
safety rather than controlling numbers of houses in multiple occupation.
• It was commented that when a property is ‘deconverted’ it doesn’t
necessarily result in the return of certain period features that buyers often
find attractive.
• A reference to providing housing for students with families was
requested.
• Sub market affordable housing should refer to 3 types – discounted sale,
sub-market rent and shared equity.

4.4

A further draft of the Strategy will be brought to the Shared Housing Group
meeting in April
Page 42

Huw Jones

APPENDIX 8
5.0

Affordable housing update

5.1

Lois Pickering provided an update on planning practice regarding affordable
housing. The policy of Leeds City Council has always required the provision of
affordable housing by developers of purpose built student accommodation.
However, established practice has waived this requirement in order to promote
the development of such purpose built accommodation.

5.2

Practice has now changed and purpose built student developments will be
required to provide affordable housing. It is normally preferred that affordable
housing be provided on-site, however in some circumstance off-site affordable
housing will be considered.

5.3

The principal reason for the change in practice is the need to develop efforts in
pursuing affordable housing targets

5.4

Officers are developing an interim affordable housing policy, whilst the
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) on affordable housing is being
formalised. Consultation is being conducted on a proposal to require 33%
affordable housing in relevant developments, in all areas except for the City
Centre and EASEL.
In addition, consultation is being carried out on an informal policy on Housing
Mix. This is suggesting 60% of new dwellings to be houses with gardens and
40% new dwellings to be 3 or more bedrooms in size on planning applications
(not applicable in the city or other centres or small sizes where houses would be
out of character).

5.5

A formal process must be adhered to when developing a SPD and it is
anticipated that this should be finalised in December 2008. Preliminary
workshops for stakeholders have been held and formal public consultation will
be conducted in the summer.

6.0

2007 report on Implementation of Policy H15A & Report on distribution of
purpose built student accommodation city-wide

6.1

Andrew Crates presented a report on the development of purpose built student
housing schemes outside of the Area of Housing Mix. Specific reference was
made to recent applications, including Perseverance Mills, the RSPCA site on
Cavendish Street, the BBC site and phase two of the Claypit Lane scheme.
Construction work has started on all of the sites where developments have been
approved. There have been no specific sites in other areas that have been
identified by the Council and Universities as being suitable for student
accommodation.

6.2

Andrew presented a report on the development of purpose built student housing
schemes within the Area of Housing Mix. Specific reference was made to a
number of recent decisions, including the proposals for Kirkstall District Centre,
Becketts Park Campus, Park Lane / Hanover Square, Shay Street and Moorland
Avenue. An application has been submitted for a student flats development on
the site of the former Glassworks on Cardigan Road (West Plans Panel have
subsequently resolved to refuse planning permission).
Page 43

APPENDIX 8
6.3

A map of the Area of Housing Mix and its hinterland was circulated, showing the
geographical distribution of purpose built student housing schemes built since
the mid 1990s. A small number of older developments exist in the core of the
AoHM, although the Becketts Park campus will provide accommodation further
north. The Kirkstall Brewery development is a significant scheme, just to the
west of the AoHM boundary. However, the larger amount of most recent
developments have occurred on the 'city fringe', in Little Woodhouse, the north
of the City Centre, Woodhouse and the Meanwood Road area. It was noted that
whilst these are described a purpose built student flats, there is evidence to
show large numbers of students living in open market residential flats in the City
Centre. There is also provision for non-students to live in some of the
developments. It was noted that it would be useful to also have a key on the
map to correspond to particular developments.

7.0

Neighbourhood Helpline Report

7.1

A report summarising the operation of the Helpline from August 2006 – July
2007 was circulated to the meeting.

7.2

Greg Miller presented the key points within the report, highlighting that:
• Leeds Metropolitan University had joined the Helpline mid way through
the period covered by the report, which resulted in their under
representation in some of the data.
• Now that Leeds Metropolitan university have joined, the Helpline is able
to deal with 90% of the calls it receives and joint procedures between the
two universities have been agreed.
• There had been a 24% increase in the number of complaints within the
Hyde Park and Woodhouse ward.
• There were no complaints from the Kirkstall ward.
• Peaks in complaints were observed at the start of semesters and when
students change accommodation.
• Mediation is always attempted as the first step.+• If disciplinary action is taken it is unclear if details can be publicised due
to data protection laws.
• It was noted that ‘one-off’ incidents involving student households are
difficult to handle when compared to ongoing nuisance.
• The universities have been monitoring parties advertised on Facebook
and contacting party organisers in advance regarding their
responsibilities.

8.0

Use Classes Order

8.1

A delegation of councillors and an MP from Nottingham made a recent visit to
Westminster in order to propose changes to the Use Classes Order. The
relevant minister is currently considering these proposals.

8.2

Richard Tyler has proposed that a delegation from Leeds also travel to
Westminster in order to support the proposals, which call for a requirement to
achieve planning permission prior to converting a property into a shared house
for rent.

8.3

Efforts are being made to secure support for the proposal from the relevant
Parliamentary Committee and the Local Government Association.
Page 44

APPENDIX 8
It was noted that there are a number of inconsistencies between pieces of
legislation in terms of what constitutes a ‘shared house’ and a ‘house in multiple
occupancy’.
Further information on proposals regarding the Use Classes Order will be
circulated following the meeting.

9.0

Any Other Business

9.1

Peter Lythe at Leeds University is producing maps showing levels of student
occupancy, which should be available at the next meeting.

10.0

Time and date of next meeting

10.1

22nd April 2008, 2 pm, Civic Hall

Page 45

Andrew
Crates

Rachel
Unsworth

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46

Agenda Item 9
Originator: Helen Bowker
Tel: 0113 3952827

Report of the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods
Inner North West Area Committee
Date: 3rd April 2008
Subject: Well-being end of year monitoring report
Electoral Wards Affected:

Specific Implications For:

Headingley
Hyde Park & Woodhouse
Kirkstall
Weetwood

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Narrowing the Gap

Delegated Executive
Function available
for Call In

Council
Function

ü

ü

Delegated Executive
Function not available for
Call In Details set out in the
report

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
This report provides Members with end of year monitoring for quarter 3 and 4 on Well-being
projects funded during 2007/08. Monitoring of projects that ended prior to quarter 3 have
previously been reported to the Committee and are therefore not included in this report.

1.0

Purpose

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with end of year monitoring on all
Well-being projects funded during 2007/08.

2.0

Monitoring of Revenue Projects

2.1

This section provides an update on live/ongoing revenue projects from the revenue
Well-being year 2007/08. Completed projects which have already been monitored
and reported to the Area Committee are not included.

2.2

Project Name: Harold and Thornvilles Anti-climb Paint
Lead Organisation: CASAC
Amount: £7,800

Page 47

1

Project description: Drain pipe treatment to 780 properties within the area at £10
per property.
Project Update: West Yorkshire Police are in the process of working with Leeds
City Council to access/gather ownership details for the properties, to enable
permission to be gained before applying the paint. Once this stage is complete,
CASAC will organise visits and contact tenants to inform them of the application
schedule. CASAC have also been working with West Yorkshire Police to secure
funding for other streets in the area, which are being dealt with in parallel to this
project. This has resulted in higher demands on the Police to gather information
and as such process has been slower than anticipated.
2.3

Project Name: Site Based Gardeners
Lead Organisation: Parks and Countryside
Amount: £17,800
Project description: Funding for two site based gardeners
Project Update: Two gardeners are on site, one in Beckett Park and one in
Woodhouse Ridge to undertake general gardening duties and look after the
maintenance and upkeep of the sites. The presence of a site-based gardener has
enabled changes in park maintenance to be achieved such as grass cutting, ground
and shrub maintenance, litter clearance, leaf collection, pathways swept etc.

2.4

Project Name: Headingley HEART
Lead Organisation: Headingley Development Trust
Amount: £9,300
Project description: Revenue funding to progress the HEART proposal
Project Update: HDT have developed a membership of over 700 making them one
of the largest Development Trusts in the country. They have submitted a bid for
£750,000 to the new Community Assets Fund, and a decision on this application is
expected in March 2008. There is a slight under spend due to the first consultant
not being commissioned until May 2007.

2.5

Project Name: Community Composting
Lead Organisation: Leeds Organic Growers
Amount: £15,000
Project description: Garden waste kerbside collection and composting
Project Update: All the money has been spent on managerial activities for the
project. Work has been finished on the site and household garden waste collections
started the week of 17th March. Further promotional work is being undertaken in
Kirkstall to attract more users to the service.

2.6

Project Name: Extended Youth Services
Lead Organisation: Youth Service
Amount: £3,000
Project description: There are 3 elements:- a) Hawksworth Wood Group; b) Girls'
Group (assisting visits across the city and involvement in campaigns such as
International Women's Day); and c) DJ & Music Workshop (12 week course).
Project Update: a) A group of 12-15 young males were engaged through a
detached session and later with the support of the mobile unit. The group have now
developed into a sporting group. The funding was used to secure a letting at Goals,
an FA coach and equipment/kit. The group will benefit from accreditation on the
Duke of Edinburgh programme via the access route; b) A regular group of 8 girls
meet at provision at West Park centre. The group have spent half the funding on
making the room more comfortable for their needs, purchasing a DVD player,
kettle/cups and other equipment. The rest of the funding has been spent on trips
Page 48

2

giving the girls opportunities outside the area, such as to the Grand Theatre,
bowling and ice skating; and c) The Little London boys meet at Little London
Community Centre and have engaged with 15 young men. Positive Futures have
assisted with the course, using music technology and DJ’ing as a tool.
2.7

Project Name: Community Planning Officer
Lead Organisation: City Development Department
Amount: £42,440
Project description: Dedicated Planning Officer to assist community groups and
residents to access information and make comments on planning issues.
Project Update: Over quarters 3 and 4 the Community Planning Officer has been
assisting in relation to a number of major schemes, including the refurbishment of
the Arndale Centre, Oddbins site, Glassworks site, Cookridge Hospital, Tetley Hall
and the proposed re-development of Headingley stadium. Advice has also been
given in relation to a number of smaller proposals. Work on the Neighbourhood
Design Statements is making good progress and work has commenced on
launching a Community Vision for Kirkstall. Resident drop-in sessions have
continued to be provided on a monthly basis.

2.8

Project Name: Mobile Youth Bus
Lead Organisation: Youth Services
Amount: £11,975
Project description: Provision of a mobile youth facility for North West Leeds.
Project Update: In quarters 3 and 4 the bus has been used in all of the inner wards
and young people are benefiting from being able to access help and information
where they ‘hang out’. The youth mobile is also working with schools in the area
and young people are able to take part in relevant activities and discussions with
youth workers. Due to staffing issues Youth Services are currently looking at ways
of using other agencies to deliver services via the mobile across the area.

2.9

Project Name: Neighbourhood Design Statement Fund
Lead Organisation: Planning Sub Group
Amount: £15,000
Project description: Funding for three design statements for the Inner North West.
Project Update:
• Headingley (£5,000) – The project was launched in September 2007 by the local
MP, at a special exhibition and presentation. A Neighbourhood Questionnaire
was launched at the same time. The questionnaire has been circulated in
printed and electronic form, and completed copies have begun to be returned.
• Little Woodhouse (£5,000) – The project was launched in November 2007 and a
steering group was set up with interested residents and group representatives.
5,000 questionnaires have been printed for distribution to residents and a
newsletter has been sent to 2,000 houses promoting the design statement.
Workshops were held in February and March 2008, where residents walked the
area, took photos and discussed the issues facing the neighbourhood. Work is
in progress on a draft of the document and an update will be given in April 2008
at the next Little Woodhouse Community Forum.
• North Hyde Park (£5,000) – Work on the Conservation Area Appraisal is well
under way with two of the five character areas covered. Plans are in hand for
the remaining areas to be reviewed in the coming months. The project is on
course for completion by October 2008.
Page 49

3

2.10

Project Name: Older Active People Project
Lead Organisation: Cardigan Centre – Older Active People
Amount: £4,000
Project description: Extend and maintain OAPs work into North Headingley.
Project Update: During quarters 3 and 4 the project has continued to provide a
service to the area. A weekly surgery at Headingley Community Centre’s tea bar
has been established as well as a theatre group that meets monthly. In January
2008 the project worked with CALM to host Another Year party for 100 elders, in
February the project held an Open Forum meeting and in March residents of North
Headingley attended an Action Tea Party. The project now has 54 members
participating in a range of preventative health activities that help reduce social
isolation. 15 of the people who have joined from the new area are also utilising and
developing their skills through participating in community arts projects.

2.11

Project Name: Generations Together
Lead Organisation: Cardigan Centre – Older Active People
Amount: £6,000
Project description: Gap funding to ensure the continuation of the project across
Headingley, Burley, Hyde Park, Weetwood, Kirkstall and Little London
Project Update: During quarters 3 and 4 the project has been able to establish a
befriending scheme, where 14 volunteers have visited 15 older people once a week.
The project has also held circle time sessions and a mentoring scheme in local
primary schools.
Run jointly with ACTION the project has provided an
intergenerational shopping service which runs throughout the year. There has also
been joint participation in local Diwali and Eid celebrations with 10 elders and 21
young people visiting the local Hindu Temple and Mosque. The project currently
has 5 new volunteers in the process of being introduced to local older people and
plan to have the number of volunteers back to 25 by summer 2008.

2.12

Project Name: Festive lights in Kirkstall
Lead Organisation: Gilbert and Sandfords Residents’ Association
Amount: £1,420
Project description: Festive lights in Kirkstall
Project Update: 10 festive lights were put up around the two central Kirkstall traffic
lights on the A65 over Christmas 2007, to which there was a very positive response.
The Gilbert & Sandford Residents’ Association are currently liaising with local
businesses to encourage sponsorship of the festive lights for Christmas 2008.

2.13

Project Name: Making healthy lifestyle changes in the community
Lead Organisation: World of Fitness
Amount: £5,000
Project description: Activities that will be delivered include aerobic classes, step
and boxercise and tailor made programmes for the elderly, women only, young
people and those with disabilities.
Project Update: During quarters 3 and 4 the project has doubled the number of
sessions that are being facilitated including kickboxing in addition to hip/hop and
cheerleading. The project is adding further boxing for fitness sessions within the
next month through the schools Extended Services, and is also embarking on a
programme of activities for the elderly which should be in place by summer 2008.
The project is now operating from more sites across the inner north west area, and
has seen an increase in physical activity participation from primary/high school
pupils.
Page 50

4

2.14

Project Name: Up Your Street
Lead Organisation: University of Leeds and CALM
Amount: £5,000
Project description: Streetscene and environmental projects, working with student
volunteers.
Project Update: The funding was used for projects such as Bargain Hunt in May
2007 where over 1,000 items were reused and recycled. 15 new student volunteers
were recruited and trained at the start of September 2007 and were involved in
community clean ups and taster sessions. The Re-float project has continued
fortnightly throughout the year collecting glass from approximately 50 residential
homes. During February and March 2008 a pilot project was developed in
conjunction with Streetscene, which encouraged more recycling by using green
bags instead of bins. Information has been collected through a survey and a full
report will follow at the end of March. Future projects include a community clean up
at Rosebank Green, Woodhouse and another Bargain Hunt in May 2008.

2.15

Project Name: International Film Project
Lead Organisation: Hyde Park Picture House
Amount: £2,000
Project description: Funding for non-mainstream films
Project Update: The project has had great successes resulting in strong box office
figures which has allowed the Picture House to show a slightly higher number of
films. 15 films were screened during quarter 4 of which seven had not been
previously screened within the city. The films included a selection of Czech
animation, an environmentally conscious documentary about crude oil and a British
documentary about Tudor re-enactors. The Picture House also screened five older
film titles as part of a month long, city wide festival called Winter Pride.

2.16

Project Name: Fundraising Officer
Lead Organisation: Voluntary Action Leeds
Amount: £41,000
Project description: To provide funding advice to community and voluntary groups
across the Inner North West.
Project Update: The project anticipates to support a minimum of 19 groups during
quarter 4 (4 in Headingley, 8 in Hyde Park and Woodhouse, 2 in Kirkstall and 5 in
Weetwood). Support to many of these groups has been intensive and ongoing.
The project has exceeded the annual target of supporting £100,000 of new funding
into the area, with a few applications still pending. They have repeated the Awards
for All training in quarter 4 to meet the demand from other groups.

2.17

Project Name: Hyde Park and Woodhouse DPPO
Lead Organisation: Area Management
Amount: £5,000
Project description: Designated Public Places Order
Project Update: Discussions with Ward Members still ongoing.

2.18

Project Name: Woodhouse Moor Survey
Lead Organisation: Area Management
Amount: £2,439

Page 51

5

Project description: A comprehensive survey of users of Woodhouse Moor and
local residents, to gauge public opinion on what improvements/facilities people
would like to see.
Project Update: Friends of Woodhouse Moor did not meet in March, and now plan
to discuss whether they will take on the completion of the survey in April.
2.19

Project Name: Neighbourhood Improvement Plans
Lead Organisation: Area Management
Amount: £6,000
Project description: Targeted improvement plans for local communities
Project Update:
• Harold & Thornvilles Headingley – A Community Action Day was held at the
Cardigan Centre on Saturday 17th November. The event included a ‘drop-in’
session between 10.00 and 12.30 with officers from West Yorkshire Police,
Streetscene Services and Area Management in attendance. Information packs
were distributed house to house prior to the drop-in.
• Weetwood – A neighbourhood improvement survey was hand delivered to over
600 households in the Silk Mills area in early February 2008. 157 responses
were received which are now being analysed with a view to holding a community
action day sometime in spring.
• Kirkstall – No decision has been taken on what the funding shall be used for.
Progress is still ongoing.

2.20

Project Name: Community Inclusion Initiative
Lead Organisation: Older People’s Action in the Locality
Amount: £2,000
Project description: Employment of a Community Inclusion Worker to recruit and
train new volunteers to support older people. The worker will also be responsible for
managing and supporting OPAL’s existing volunteers.
Project Update: The project has recruited 11 volunteers overall, who have all
completed induction training and CRB checks. Five drop ins have been established
and are occurring each month at Cookridge Village Hall, Ireland Crescent
Residential Accommodation, Adel Pharmacy and Bramhope Methodist Church.
There have also been 3 volunteer support meetings since the project began.

2.21

Project Name: Hyde Park CCTV
Lead Organisation: Leedswatch
Amount: £9,152
Project description: Revenue costs for 3 additional CCTV cameras in Hyde Park.
Project Update: The three cameras attached to Leedswatch went operational in
April 2007. Since that date Leedswatch have received 26 CCTV requests from
West Yorkshire Police, so far information received from the Police highlights that 10
arrests have resulted. Police update Leedswatch utilising their Police CCTV Liaison
Officers on a case by case basis. The cameras have also proved useful for
partnership working with the Police utilising the cameras for ANPR (Automatic
Number Plate Recognition) operations resulting in vehicles being taken off the road
for no tax/insurance or found to be stolen. ANPR operations have resulted in 22
arrests and 33 vehicles seized in the area of Hyde Park and Headingley.

Page 52

6

2.22

Project Name: Headingley Additional Policing
Lead Organisation: West Yorkshire Police
Amount: £7,500
Project description: The project will provide additional policing to Headingley ward
for the purpose of reducing anti-social behaviour, violent crime, criminal damage
and fear of crime through high visibility patrols to key hotspots at target times.
Project Update: Funding has been effectively used to tackle anti-social behaviour
and drink related crime within the Headingley area. High visibility patrols have
increased at key times to target the right offending types at the correct times of the
day. There has also been a decrease in the reporting of crimes in this area. Some
funding has been retained for summer 2008 so resources can focus on key issues
at this time.

2.23

Project Name: Off Road Motorbikes
Lead Organisation: West Yorkshire Police
Amount: £4,770
Project description: Funding for the use of off road police motorbikes to help tackle
nuisance motorbike use in hard to access places.
Project Update: The bikes continue to be used throughout the area, in particular in
Hawksworth Wood and northern parts of Weetwood. They are mainly used
proactively, but do respond to specific reports of nuisance behaviour. Details of
specific successes will be available for circulation early in the new financial year.

2.24

Project Name: St Chad’s Primary School Outdoor Learning Environment
Lead Organisation: St Chad’s School Governors
Amount: £2,500
Project description: Funding for the creation of a multi sensory outdoor learning
environment.
Project Update: The development of the outdoor area is going to take place during
2008/09 financial year. Design of the project is being undertaken and it is hoped
work will take place in the summer 2008 holidays.

2.25

Project Name: Kirkstall Valley Park
Lead Organisation: Kirkstall Valley Park Board
Amount: £1,500
Project description:
Project Update: Work on the detailed planning application is ongoing between the
Kirkstall Valley Park Board and Leeds Metropolitan University. The application is
due to be submitted in late spring.

2.26

Project Name: Sandy Lane Footpath
Lead Organisation: City Development
Amount: £2,955
Project description: The formal adoption by the Council of the footpath, involving
the issuing of a creation order. The funding also covers one year’s revenue costs
for the cleansing and maintenance of the path.
Project Update: A creation order is in the process of being developed and should
be issued shortly. The order will then allow for the footpath to be formally adopted
by the Council. Should there be any objections to the creation order the timescale
until adoption will be increased. Kirkstall Members will be informed as soon as the
process has been completed.

Page 53

7

2.27

Project Name: Looked after Young People
Lead Organisation: Children’s Services
Amount: £5,000
Project description: Allowing young people in care to participate in educational and
leisure activities that require additional cost, e.g. school trips.
Project Update: The funds have not yet been released to Children’s Services as
discussions are still ongoing about how the funds will be handled and guarantees
that only young people from the inner north west benefit, over and above financial
support that would otherwise be given to them. Monitoring will continue on this in
2008/09.

2.28

Project Name: Royal Park Greenspace
Lead Organisation: Parks & Countryside
Amount: £8,000
Project description: Revenue costs for the maintenance of the park and MUGA.
Project Update: Regular cleansing and officer inspections continue to take place.
From 2008/09 the revenue costs will be mainstreamed, as originally agreed when
the Area Committee funded the creation of the park.

2.29

Project Name: Woodsley Road Centre Development
Lead Organisation: Area Management/Voluntary Action Leeds
Amount: £5,000
Project description: Consultancy and support work to the Management Committee
of Woodsley Road Community Centre, to help them achieve the objectives of their
Management Agreement with the Council.
Project Update:
The management committee have, for some time, been
requesting that this funding is paid directly to them rather than being channelled via
Voluntary Action Leeds. At this point in time none of the funding has been spent.

3.0

Monitoring of Capital Projects

3.1

This section provides an update on capital projects funded in 2007/08.

3.2

Project Name: Silk Mills Recreation Area
Lead Organisation: Parks and Countryside, LCC
Amount: £19,057 (£59,847 allocated in 06/07)
Project description: To build a new play area and a youth shelter, to be located off
Silk Mill Close in Weetwood.
Project Update: The Silk Mill play area and youth shelter are now complete. The
reinstatement of the path will be completed by the end of February. The original
timetable was delayed due to waiting for the planning permission approval for the
youth shelter. A launch event is expected to take place in early April.

3.3

Project Name: Festive lights in Kirkstall
Lead Organisation: Gilbert and Sandfords Residents’ Association
Amount: £3,800
Project description: Festive lights in Kirkstall
Project Update: 10 festive lights were installed around the central Kirkstall traffic
lights on the A65 over Christmas 2007, to which there was a very positive response.
The Gilbert & Sandford Residents’ Association are currently liaising with local
businesses in order to encourage sponsorship of the lights for Christmas 2008.

Page 54

8

3.4

Project Name: Grass verges and Footpath Improvements
Lead Organisation: Highways and Parks and Countryside
Amount: £10,000
Project description: Fund for improvements in areas where there are issues with
people parking on grass verges
Project Update: Estcourt Terrace – this project was completed in quarter 3. No
other scheme was completed in 2007/08. The fund will be rolled forward and further
schemes identified in 2008/09.

3.5

Project Name: Headingley HEART
Lead Organisation: Headingley Development Trust
Amount: £50,000 (+£50,000 allocated from 2004/07 capital budget)
Project description: Funding for the refurbishment of the former primary school.
Project Update: Following approval by Executive Board to transfer ownership of
the Headingley Primary School building to Headingley Development Trust, HDT
have applied for £750,000 asset transfer to cover the cost of refurbishing the former
school. A decision on this application is expected in late March 2008.

3.6

Project Name: St Chad’s Primary School Outdoor Learning Environment
Lead Organisation: St Chad’s School Governors
Amount: £10,000
Project description: Funding for the creation of a multi sensory outdoor learning
environment.
Project Update: The development of the outdoor area is going to take place during
2008/09 financial year. Design of the project is being undertaken and it is hoped
work will take place in the summer 2008 holidays.

4.0

Recommendations

4.1

The Inner North West Area Committee is requested to note the contents of the
report.

Page 55

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56

Agenda Item 10
Originator: Steve Crocker
/Jason Singh
Tel: 0113 3952825
Report of the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods
Inner North West Area Committee
Date: 3rd April 2008
Subject: Area Manager’s Report
Electoral Wards Affected:

Specific Implications For:

Ethnic minorities
ALL
Women
Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Disabled people
Narrowing the Gap

Council
Function

Delegated Executive
Function available
for Call In

ü

ü

Delegated Executive
Function not available for
Call In Details set out in the
report

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The purpose of this report is to informs Members of progress on a number of projects in
Inner North West Leeds as follows:•
•
•

•
•

Report on the residents survey 2007 as it affects Inner North West Leeds;
Report on the 2007 neighbourhood statistics as they affect Inner North West Leeds;
Developments in the area: an update on Royal Park Primary School, Headingley
Primary School, Neighbourhood Management, Headingley Town & District Centre
scheme, Little London regeneration scheme and Operation Champion;
Partnership working in West and North West Leeds; and
An update on the Regeneration restructure as it affects the area.

1.0

Purpose of the Report

1.1

This report provides Members with information about issues in the area which are
not addressed elsewhere on the agenda.

2.0
2.1

Background Information
The priorities of the Inner North West Area Committee are set out in the Area
Delivery Plan agreed by Members in February 2007. This report updates Members
on a number of specific actions under this plan.

Page 57

2.2

3.0

The results of the 2007 residents survey and the IMD Neighbourhood statistics give
an up to date picture of trends over the past three years within the local area.
These will help inform the Area Delivery Plan for the Area Committee 2008-11. This
report also identifies progress in major project and proposals for future partnership
arrangements.
Main Issues

Report of Leeds Annual Residents Survey 2007
3.1

This section of the report examines the key findings from the 2007 Leeds Annual
Survey as it relates to North West Leeds. The City Council commissioned QA
Research to undertake the 2007 Leeds Annual Survey, following on from the work
that they did in 2005 (Leeds Annual Survey). The aim of the survey is to measure
satisfaction levels with various City Council services. Copies of the full report are
available separately.

3.2

Residents were asked the top things they considered most in need of improvement
in the North West Leeds. In 2007 the top five were:• Road and pavement repairs 36%;
• Activities for teenagers 24%;
• Low level of ASB 19%;
• Low level of traffic congestion 19%; and
• Clean neighbourhoods 14%.
While some of the issues are the same for North West residents as for the city as a
whole (for example road and pavement repairs, anti social behaviour and activities
for teenagers), the responses from North West also rank traffic congestion and
clean neighbourhoods in the top 5. The proportion of respondents saying that traffic
congestion need improving fell however, from 32% in 2005 to 19% in 2007, and
crime fell from 24% in 2005 to 13% in 2007.

3.3

The survey asked people whether they felt specific services in their area had got
better, worse or stayed the same over the last 12 months. The results show
overwhelmingly that people feel that things have stayed the same over the last 12
months. Comparison with the 2005 results shows that the issues have largely
remained the same, with activities for teenagers replacing crime in the priority list –
reflecting improvements in the headline crime figures. It should be noted that
respondents from the North West said that road and pavement repairs have got
worse (42% compared to 29% in 2005), as has the amount of affordable decent
housing (32% compared to 19% in 2005).

3.4

The areas where residents in North West thought that the council’s priorities should
be when deciding how to spend its money in 2008 are:• Road and pavement repairs 39%;
• Activities for teenagers 26%;
• Traffic congestion 21%;
• Tackling crime 20%;
• Tackling ASB 20%; and
• Affordable decent housing 20%.
These results are broadly in line with those for the city as a whole. They do indicate
a need for the Area Committee to continue with efforts to tackle crime, grime,
disrepair and activities for teenagers and affordable housing provision.
Page 58

The Indices of Deprivation 2007
3.5

The Index of Multiple Deprivation 2007 was published in December 2007. It updated
the previous survey undertaken in 2004 and therefore allows a direct comparison to
see how neighbourhoods are progressing, and to measure the success of measures
to tackle health poverty and improvement of services. The seven “domain” statistics
measured are as follows:• Income deprivation;
• Employment deprivation;
• Health deprivation and disability;
• Education, skills and training deprivation;
• Barriers to housing and services;
• Living environment deprivation; and
• Crime.
In addition, there are two supplementary indices that measure Income Deprivation
Affecting Children and Income Deprivation Affecting Older People.

3.6

Overall the analysis of data shows that Inner North West Leeds has improved
markedly in terms of levels of deprivation between 2004 and 2007, reflecting the
overall trends citywide. The numbers of SOAs in the worst 20% nationally has fallen
from 20 in 2004 to 10 in 2007.

3.7

The most notable improvements within the individual domains have been crime and
disorder where the numbers of neighbourhoods within the most deprived 10% on
the national scale fell from 37 in 2004 to 16 in 2007 and living environment where
the numbers of neighbourhoods within the most deprived 10% on the national scale
fell from 32 in 2004 to 20 in 2007.

3.8

The neighbourhoods within the worst 20% that have improved most in 2007
compared to 2004 are Little London/Lovell Park from 816 in 2004 to 2104 in 2007 –
crime and housing, Servia Hill (the adjacent area) improving by 696 places and
Hawksworth Wood by 217 places overall.

Table 1: Improvements of neighbourhoods in Inner North West 2003-7
Area
Ward
Improvement (places)
Little London/Lovells
Hyde Park and Woodhouse
1288
Servia Hill
Hyde Park and Woodhouse
696
Hawksworth Wood
Kirkstall
217
3.9

The areas now with the highest levels of deprivation in Inner North West Leeds in
rank order are Hawksworth Wood (worst 5% nationally) Little London and Servia
Hill (worst 10% nationally ), Silk Mills, Woodhouse Carr, Burley, West Park, Ivesons,
Woodsley Road and Lea Farm (in the worst 20% of deprived neighbourhoods
nationally).

Page 59

Table 2: Overall ranking of neighbourhoods in Inner North West (2007 data)
National Rank
Band
Neighbourhood
Ward
1042
5%
Hawksworth Wood
Kirkstall
2104
10%
Little London
Hyde
Park/Woodhouse
2422
10%
Servia Hill
Hyde
Park/Woodhouse
3701
20%
Silk Mills
Weetwood
4001
20%
Woodhouse Carr
Hyde
Park/Woodhouse
4285
20%
Burley
Kirkstall
4685
20%
Latchmeres
Kirkstall
4671
20%
Ivesons
Weetwood
5175
20%
Woodsley Road
Hyde
Park/Woodhouse
6204
20%
Lea Farm
Kirkstall
It should be borne in mind that some of the statistics in the IoD series are not completely up
to date and hence do not reflect more recent changes.
Developments in the Area
3.10 Royal Park Primary School
Further consultation work was undertaken in February in an attempt to increase the
response rate to the questionnaire on the use of community space at Royal Park to
one hundred. This involved a day of door knocking in the vicinity of the school with a
member of the Royal Park Community Consortium, as well as attendance at a public
meeting held by the Consortium. Through this additional work the target number of
completed questionnaires has been achieved. The consultation period will formally
close at the end of March, after which time a final specification for the space will be
submitted to the Rushbonds, to help inform their development of the scheme.
3.11 Headingley Primary School
The outcome of Headingley Development Trust’s application to the Community
Asset Transfer Fund was expected at the end of March. At the time of writing this
report a decision had not been received, a verbal update will be given at the Area
Committee should anything further be heard.
3.12 Neighbourhood Management
Little London remains one of the priority neighbourhood management areas. Further
detail of the successes of the Little London scheme and changes to its delivery for
2008/09 can be found as a separate agenda item.
3.13

Neighbourhood management continues in the NIP areas of Hawksworth Wood
(Kirkstall), the Silk Mills (Weetwood) and the Harolds (Headingley). Action plans are
now in place for all three areas, and are being delivered through agreed partnership
routes with the likes of Streetscene, West North West Homes, the police and
environmental enforcement.

Page 60

3.13 Town and District Centres update : Headingley
The design and development of the scheme has now been commissioned, which will
be undertaken by the Strategic Design Alliance, a partnership between the city
Council and Jacobs Babtie. It is anticipated that work on design development will
commence in the first quarter of 2008/09. In order to fully engage with all relevant
stakeholders Area Management will by undertaking consultation throughout the
design process, including re-establishing the Headingley Town Centre Strategy
Group, and speaking to local business owners.
Headingley has also been identified by a citywide survey as being one of the two
worst district centre for parking. In light of this a parking strategy for the area is
scheduled to be developed, involving a more in-depth local study, and consultation
with local residents and businesses and ward Councillors. The outcome of the study
will identify improvements required and associated investment needed.
3.14 Regeneration – Little London
The procurement phase for the Little London regeneration scheme is well underway.
Four consortium bids were successful in getting through the initial pre-qualification
stage. All four have since submitted an outline of the solutions they would use to
achieve the Council’s required objectives for the regeneration of the area. In April
2008, following evaluation of these outline solutions three consortiums will be
successful in progressing to the next stage of procurement, involving submission of
detailed solutions.
Mechanisms for the involvement of tenants and residents in the evaluation process
of the bids are presently being developed by Council officers. Tenants and residents
are being asked to volunteer if they wish to be involved to this extent and will be
supported through the process by training and independent guidance. A number
have already come forward, through recently established Neighbourhood Forums, to
express an interest in this.
In addition to the above, the Council is currently applying for Outline Planning
Permissions for the four development sites within the regeneration scheme. These
are Carlton Gate, Cambridge Road, Leicester Place and the Community Hub. In
order to make resident’s aware of these applications a newsletter will be distributed
to each household within the regeneration area, and a drop-in event organised. The
outcomes of the four applications are expected to be known by the end of July.
3.15 Community Safety - Operation Champion
An Operation Champion was held in Little London between 20th and 24th February.
The operation included involvement from the police, fire service, West North West
Homes, Streetscene and the DVLA. The outcomes of the operation are still being
gathered and evaluated, and will be shared with local ward members when available.
Partnership working
3.17

The joint North West and West District Partnership funding A2E bid for 2008-10
funding was unfortunately unsuccessful. Staff from Area Management will work with
the successful winners of the contract (Archway, Touchstone, Learning Partnerships)

Page 61

to ensure that the needs of lone parents and those young people not in education
employment and training are provided for by the new services.
3.18

Under the new arrangements for Area Committees to scrutinise local partnership
working, the first seminar with Inner North West Area Committee, led by the Crime
Reduction Partnership, is scheduled to take place prior to the next Committee on
3rd July 2008.

Regeneration Restructuring
3.19

The proposals for restructuring Area Management and the new roles of Area
Committees were reported to Area Committee in December 2007. Subsequent to
this time Area Managers for the three new Area Management areas have been
agreed as follows: Rory Barke- North East, David Richmond - South East and Steve
Crocker – North West and West. The Deputy Area Manager for North West and
West will be Jason Singh, the former Area Co ordinator for North West Leeds. The
North West and West team will cover 13 wards and four area committees. It will have
bases in both the former North West and West Area.

3.20

Little London regeneration staff will now come under the management of the new
City Regeneration Office manager, Christine Addison. Appointments are being
made to posts within the team structure, this will be completed by summer 2008.

3.21

The new Environmental Action Team manager for North West and West Leeds is
Ruth Lees, formally the Environmental Health manager for West Leeds. The EAT
team will work closely with Area Management and will be co located to enable a
comprehensive approach to tackling crime and grime.

4.0
4.1

Council Policy and Governance, Legal and Resource Implications
The Area Delivery Plan for Inner North West is administered through North West and
West Leeds Area Management team. This report had indicated progress on tackling
a number of projects crucial to delivering the next Area Delivery Plan 2008-11.

5.0

Recommendations

5.1

Inner North West Area Committee Members are invited to note the contents of the
report and to comment on any aspect of the matter raised.

Page 62

Agenda Item 11
Originator: Jason Singh
Tel:

0113 3952826

Report of the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods
Inner North West Area Committee
Date: 3rd April 2008
Subject: Development of New Area Delivery Plan for 2008-11
Electoral Wards Affected:

Specific Implications For:

ALL

Equality and Diversity

ü

Community Cohesion

ü

Narrowing the Gap

ü

Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Council
Function

ü

Delegated Executive
Function available
for Call In

Delegated Executive
Function not available for
Call In Details set out in the
report

1.0

Purpose of This Report

1.1

The report suggests a process for developing the committees new Area Delivery Plan
(ADP) for the period 2008-11. Members views are sought on a programme of ward
based consultation events to inform the new ADPs.

2.0

Background Information

2.1

At its December and January meetings the Area Committee discussed the Area
Management Review and Executive Board’s November 2007 decision to enhance
and extend Area Committee responsibilities and working arrangements. As reported
previously this involves new ADPs for each of the city’s ten Area Committees for the
period 2008-11, which are to be linked to the improvement priorities in the city’s
Strategic Plan.

2.2

In addition to defining Council service priorities in the area it is intended that the new
ADPs will also provide a framework for partnership priorities reflecting the enhanced
responsibilities of Area Committees for strategic partnership activity.
Area
Committees will provide a local governance and accountability structure for agreed
partnership collaboration through the ADPs which will be part of the Leeds Strategic
Plan framework. A final draft of the ADP will be presented to the Area Committee for
approval at its 3rd July meeting.

Page 63

3.0

Developing the ADPs - Main Issues

3.1

The ADPs will be developed in themed service areas, these include:
§
§
§
§
§
§
§
§

Cultural Life;
Enterprise and the Economy;
Children and Young People/ Learning;
A Modern Transport System;
Environment City;
Health and Wellbeing;
Thriving Places; and
Harmonious Communities.

Members will have received a survey for completion seeking views and comments in
each of the above areas as part of the initial consultation on the new ADPs.
3.2

Key points are:

3.3

Next Steps in the Development of ADPs

3.4

§

Member meetings by ward with relevant offices and partners.

§

Consultation with Council Directorates.

§

Consultation with key partners including Police, PCT, ALMO and voluntary/
community sectors.

Consultation Events
To support the development of the ADPs a programme of ward based consultation
sessions in the area is proposed as follows:
1 x Headingley – second week of May
1 x Kirkstall – second week of May
1 x Hyde Park – third week of May
1 x Weetwood – third week of May
The format of these sessions may vary but each session will involve a ‘planning for
real’ activity and a survey to inform priorities by strategic theme. The sessions will
involve local ward Members, voluntary and community sector organisations, key
public sector partners, and local business and residents.

3.5

Member Working Group
It is proposed that a Member working group be established to oversee the production
of the ADP. It is suggested that this group be comprised of a one member per ward.
It is envisaged that the group would meet three to four times between now and the
July Area Committee meeting to consider evidence on emerging priorities from
stakeholders and draft versions of the ADP.

4.0

Recommendations

4.1

The Area Committee is asked to note the contents of this report and consider the
process suggested for the development of the new ADP for 2008–11.
Page 64

Agenda Item 12
Originator: Kate Sibson
Tel: 395 2834

Report of The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods
Inner North West Leeds Area Committee
Date: 3rd April 2008
Subject: Little London & Woodhouse Intensive Neighbourhood Management
Electoral Wards Affected:

Specific Implications For:

Hyde Park & Woodhouse

Equality and Diversity

ü

Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Delegated Executive
Function available
for Call In

Council
Function

Community Cohesion

ü

Narrowing the Gap

ü

ü

Delegated Executive
Function not available for
Call In Details set out in the
report

1.0

Purpose of the Report

1.1

This report outlines the 2008/09 budget for Intensive Neighbourhood Management
in Little London and Woodhouse.

2.0

Background

2.1

The Little London Intensive Neighbourhood Management (INM) project began in
2006, funded through the Neighbourhood Renewal Fund (NRF) and the Safer
Stronger Communities Fund (SSCF). In addition to this, a number of greenspace
improvements have been funded by the Cleaner, Safer Greener capital fund.

2.2

During the past two years, INM has supported nine main projects:
• Neighbourhood Co-ordination: employment of a neighbourhood manager;
• Streetscene Services: environmental pride team and enforcement officer;
• Police overtime: targeted operations;
• Intensive Family Support Worker: supporting families experiencing difficulties;
• Breakers Unify: break dancing classes and youth drop in;
• BARCA harm reduction: drug and alcohol outreach work;
• Health Activities Worker: part time worker delivering health education;
• Youthpoint: youth drop in and outreach work; and
• Health Activities Fund: small grants to local organisations.

Page 65

2.3

In 2008/09, the SSCF revenue allocation for INM reduces from £108,360 to
£86,000. NRF funding came to an end in March 2008, and the 2007/08 allocation of
£142,274 has been replaced by one year’s transitional funding of £83,000 through
the Working Neighbourhoods Fund.

2.4

The total budget for Little London INM will be £169,000, representing a decrease of
around 34%. This funding must only be used to support existing projects that would
otherwise have ended in March 2008.

3.0

Little London Intensive Neighbourhood Management Budget 2008/09

3.1

The following projects will be funded from April 2008 through the Little London INM
budget allocation:

3.2

Neighbourhood Manager - £37,370
The Neighbourhood Manager post will continue for one year. The work will focus on
building sustainable partnerships to ensure the improvements in Little London will
continue after the 2008/09 financial year. The Neighbourhood Manager will have an
additional budget of £8,000 to support projects that meet local priorities during the
year. This budget will also fund a bi-annual newsletter.

3.3

Streetscene Services - £39,000
Little London has benefited from an additional Streetscene team for the past two
years. It is proposed that the current arrangement will continue, with a clear
timetable for when the team is in the area. More detailed monitoring information will
be provided on the work the team undertakes.

3.4

Drug & Alcohol Outreach - £21,000
During the past six months, the service has built up trust and attracted more clients.
The twice weekly outreach will continue for one year, with a focus on referring
clients to other agencies.

3.5

Youthpoint: £10,500
The current project is based around sexual health work with young men. This year,
Youthpoint will continue to deliver three sessions a week in Little London, but the
work will focus on gang culture and weapons awareness. Work with girls will also be
included in the new programme.

3.6

Breakers Unify: £5,385
The project runs four breakdancing classes, with three aimed at children under 13.
The organisation is currently applying for funding from a number of sources to
expand its work, with a view to becoming a social enterprise. INM funding will
enable the current classes to continue until September 2008, and support will be
given with funding applications to other organisations.

3.7

Little London Arts: £2,000
The project has received £3,000 in Healthy Living grants to run a free children’s art
club. Funding will be made available to run the class until the end of the school year.

3.8

Space@ Little London: £10,000
The centre is owned by the school, but has received Access to Employment round 1
funding to deliver a programme of activities aimed at creating employment
opportunities for local residents. This funding ends in March 2008, and the school
has indicated that it is not in a position to subsidise the centre’s running costs.
Page 66

£30,000 worklessness funding is being made available for the centre to be used as
a base for other organisations to deliver training and other activities. INM is
providing additional funds to support this work, and ensure the centre remains open
for community use.
3.9

Healthy Activities Worker: £15,000
This part time post has been managed by the Cardigan Centre, and the worker has
delivered a number of schemes including; a weekly family tea time club, family
walks and primary school activities. In 2008/09, a local resident led organisation will
employ the worker to continue the current provision.

3.10

Neighbourood Priorities budget: £28,745
This money will be used to support short term projects to address priorities that are
identified through the INM partnership structure.

4.0

Monitoring and Evaluation

4.1

Three partnerships will be established in 2008/09 to address key priorities for the
neighbourhood covering: Crime & Grime; Health & Wellbeing; and Education &
Skills. The work of these partnerships will be monitored on a quarterly basis by a
co-ordination group who will ensure that the groups are not duplicating work, and
gaps are being identified. The co-ordination group will produce a quarterly report,
outlining the work that has been carried out by each partnership group.

4.2

All projects that have been funded through INM will be required to submit a report
on the previous quarter’s activities and performance against agreed outputs.

5.0

Recommendations

5.1

The Area Committee is asked to note the contents of this report.

Page 67

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68

Agenda Item 13
Originator: Dayle Lynch
Tel: 0113 3952835
Report of the Director of Environment & Neighbourhoods
Inner North West Area Committee
3rd April 2008

Date:

Subject: Woodsley Road Multi-cultural Community Centre
Electoral Wards Affected:

Specific Implications For:

Hyde Park & Woodhouse

Equality and Diversity

ü

Community Cohesion

ü

Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Council
Function

Delegated Executive
Function available
for Call In

Narrowing the Gap

ü

Delegated Executive
Function not available for
Call In Details set out in the
report

Executive Summary
Woodsley Road Community Centre Management Committee have expressed an interest in
acquiring the freehold of the centre. Over the last three years they have been working with
the Council to develop governance, accountability and business planning structures in order
for them to take a more proactive role in the day to day running and future use of the
community facility.
A report was presented to the Inner North West Area Committee in December 2007, seeking
approval for an options appraisal to be carried out on suitable models of tenure at the centre
for the management committee. Work has been carried out looking at three options:
freehold disposal; long lease arrangement; and carry on as present. Following development
of these options and analysis of their consequence, this report is seeking Area Committee
approval to proceed to negotiations with the Centre Management Committee on the freehold
disposal of the building.
A further report will be presented to the Area Committee seeking final approval to any
freehold disposal.

1.0

Purpose of the Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide the Area Committee with a comprehensive
overview of options available for the future model of tenure of Woodsley Road
Community Centre.
Page 69

1.2

2.0

The report also seeks approval to commence negotiations with the Management
Committee on the freehold disposal option.
Confidentiality

2.1

Appendix 1 discloses land valuations of Woodsley Road Community Centre, relating
to a number of differing circumstances, and is therefore deemed exempt under the
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3). The public interest in maintaining the
exemption in relation to this appendix outweighs the public interest in disclosing the
information by reason of the fact that by disclosing these details, the negotiation
procedure to be undertaken between the Council and Woodsley Road Community
Centre Management Committee could be undermined and detrimentally affected.

3.0

Background and Context

3.1

A report was presented to the Inner North West Area Committee requesting approval
to undertake an options appraisal on the future model of tenure of Woodsley Road
Community Centre in December 2007.

3.2

The Committee

3.2.1 The Management Committee has been in existence since 1997 when the centre first
opened. Over the past three years the Committee has worked closely with both Area
Management and Voluntary Action Leeds to develop into an organisation able to take
on the responsibilities of managing a community facility.
3.2.2 In 2006 the Committee registered as a charity, and therefore has to conduct its
business in line with the rules and regulations of the Charity Commission.
3.2.3 In 2007 the Committee signed up to a Management Agreement with the Council,
which outlined key objectives the Council required to have met before disposal of the
centre would be considered (an update on progress towards these objectives was
contained within the December 2007 report presented to Area Committee).
3.3

The Site

3.3.1 Woodsley Road Community Centre is situated at the top end of Woodsley Road
shopping parade. The centre is well used by local residents, specifically members of
the Kashmiri and Pakistani communities.
3.3.2 The centre is of brick and concrete tile construction, built in 1996/97 and is situated in
an area of mixed land use.
3.3.3 The site of the centre, prior to 1996, was owned by Leeds Muslim Council, but was
gifted to the City Council on the condition that a community centre be built. The
original building was enhanced and extended using SRB funding in 2003.
3.3.4 The centre is approximately 560m², and comprises of a large and medium hall, fully
fitted kitchen, office space, reception room, toilets, 3 small meeting rooms, a mortuary
and underground storage space and car park (12 spaces).

Page 70

3.4

Leeds City Council Costs

3.4.1 As with the majority of Council managed community facilities, Woodsley Road costs
considerably more to run than the income it generates. The 2007/08 council budget
for the centre was £80,670. It is anticipated that actual spend for the centre will be on
budget.
3.4.2 Income generated at the centre, through room lettings has for the past few years been
approximately £7,500. However, it is anticipated that 2007/08 income will be
approximately £9,500.
This increase can be attributed to the work of the
Management Committee who have been promoting use of the centre.
3.4.3 Only essential and minor repair work has been undertaken at the centre over the past
few years, and there are now considerable backlog maintenance requirements.
These include: a full roof overhaul; new floorings in both halls; replacement of
damaged ceiling tiles; and internal decoration.
The backlog maintenance
requirements total an estimated £55,000.
3.5

Challenges & Opportunities

3.5.1 The Area Committee already has four community centres within its delegated
portfolio, it is anticipated that a further three centres will be transferred into the
portfolio early in the next financial year. The portfolio will then include the following
centres:•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Becketts Park;
Burley Lodge;
Woodsley Road;
Headingley;
Meanwood;
Woodhouse; and
Little London.

Of these centres Becketts Park and Burley Lodge are currently under long term lease
arrangements with community/voluntary sector organisations. In addition to this,
there is a possibility that Headingley community centre could be relocated into the
Heart initiative at Headingley Primary School should the necessary funding be
secured. Plus an expression of interest has been received from an organisation
interested in long leasing Meanwood community centre.
3.5.2 With an increased portfolio of centres comes increased responsibility for a range of
associated issues. These include development and management of a new pricing
policy and identification of funding for backlog maintenance. In order to ensure well
maintained and fit for purpose centres the Area Committee may, in the future, need to
allocate a proportion of its Well-being funding to its community centre portfolio to
achieve this.
3.5.3 There are presently a number of similar requests for acquisition of community centres
ongoing in other parts of the city. The Leeds Muslim Cultural Society is presently in
negotiations with the City Council to acquire, through freehold disposal, the Pakistani
Community Centre in Harehills. There is also a similar request ongoing concerning
the Bangladeshi Centre also in Harehills. Although each case will need to be
considered on its own merits, these other examples of similar situations may be
Page 71

viewed as setting precedents, therefore providing officers and Members are satisfied
that the committee is able to run the facility effectively it may prove more difficult to
argue against a possible freehold disposal of Woodsley Road (should the
Management Committee be able to secure the necessary funds).
3.5.4 As can be seen from the income details quoted at 3.4.2, increased income generation
has already been achieved at Woodsley Road. The income from the centre has
historically been around £7,500 for a number of years, however for 2007/08 this has
increased by approximately £2,000. One of the aims of the Management Agreement
between the Council and the Management Committee was for the Committee to
increase use of the centre, and therefore the income generated, in order that their
management of the centre would become a more viable option. Although there will be
a finite limit on the possible income generated by the centre, there is still considerable
scope for further increasing lettings, and therefore income.
3.5.5 The Management Committee of Woodsley Road has for a number of years been
supported financially by the Area Committee through Well-being funding. Funding
has been given both directly (small grants) and indirectly through Voluntary Action
Leeds. Since Voluntary Action Leeds ceased being involved with the centre in April
2007, the Committee have been seeking further funding support from the Area
Committee. This request for ongoing financial support has not been fully supported
by the Area Committee. If the Management Committee were to be solely responsible,
i.e. through freehold disposal, for the management of the centre then such financial
requests would be less likely to occur due to the Committee’s ability to either raise
funds against the value of the centre, or use the centre’s income for developmental
purposes.
3.5.6 The revenue cost savings from the centre being managed by a third party could be
utilised to cover the costs of managing new facilities in the area, i.e. Royal Park
Community Space. The Council has undertaken to create and manage a community
space within the redeveloped building, as of yet the source of the revenue funding
needed has not been identified, but savings from Woodsley Road would ensure that
Royal Park is well managed and that the funding isn’t lost to the area.
3.5.7 If there were to be any capital funding generated through the preferred option, i.e.
freehold disposal, then in order for the funding to remain within the area (Inner North
West) a business case would need developing. A possible example of what this could
be used for would be improvements to other community facilities in the area, where
existing centres are not presently meeting user needs, such as complying with DDA
requirements and having effective heating and insulation.
4.0

Options Appraisal

4.1

Freehold Disposal

4.1.1

Advantages
•
•
•
•
•

Capital receipt generated for possible use on improvements with the area
Revenue savings for possible use at Royal Park, and/or capitalise for
improvements to other community facilities in the area
No further financial support requests to Well-being
Officer support time reduced to nil, or thereabouts
Allow for investment elsewhere in the area
Page 72

•
•
•
•
•
4.1.2

Council no longer responsible for maintenance of the centre
Good will between the Council and local Muslim population
Ward Member support
Management Committee able to use centre as collateral to raise funds
Council able to restrict future use of the site to a community centre only

Disadvantages
•
•
•
•
•
•

Loss of Council interest in the running of the centre
Increased association of the centre as a Muslim centre
There may be claw back requirements from past funding (SRB/European)
Management Committee unable or unwilling to pay restricted market value
Final approval of disposal would have to go to Executive Board if
Management Committee offering less than best value
Existing and future lettings could not be guaranteed by the Council

4.2

Long Lease

4.2.1

Advantages
•
•
•
•
•

4.2.2

Revenue savings for possible use at Royal Park, and/or capitalise for
improvements to other community facilities in the area
Council retains an interest in the centre
Break clauses would allow future assessment of the situation and possible
change
Council would no longer be responsible for maintenance of the centre
Peppercorn rent to the Management Committee, wouldn’t have to find a lump
sum

Disadvantages
•

•
•
•
•
•

Management Committee would require/request up to five years of financial
support, based on current annual budget (£80,000), therefore no initial
revenue saving
Increased association of the centre as a Muslim centre
Management Committee unable to raise funds against the value of the centre
Investment in other local facilities would not be achieved
Council would be the default funder should the Management Committee not
be able cover the cost of essential maintenance
Existing and future lettings could not be guaranteed by the Council

4.3

Maintain Existing Arrangements (Do Nothing)

4.3.1

Advantages
•
•
•

4.3.2

Existing lettings guaranteed by the Council
Council will ensure the centre is always fit of purpose
Lettings will be in line with citywide Council policy

Disadvantages
•

Ongoing resource implications for the Council in terms of officer support
Page 73

•
•
•
•

Expectations of local Muslim population not realised
Strain on relations with the Management Committee
Management Committee will continue to request Well-being support
Council responsible for cost and delivery of backlog maintenance

5.0

Conclusions

5.1

The present position does not lend itself to favoring the ‘do nothing’ option. The
Management Committee of Woodsley Road has for some years had the aspiration
of taking on full responsibility of the management and running of the centre, and
with the achievements they have made over the past eighteen months, i.e.
increasing lettings, registering as a charity, developing a business plan, it would be
difficult to refuse them either a long lease or freehold disposal.

5.2

Officers feel that having put in many hours of resource with the Management
Committee further work would result in limited additional outcomes. Likewise it is
felt by officers that requesting further input from Voluntary Action Leeds would not
be a cost effective means to achieving further development at the centre.

5.3

A long lease arrangement, while the most common means of transferring
management of a community facility, is not the preferred option of the Management
Committee. It also means that the Council would retain some degree of financial
responsibility for the maintenance of the centre should the Management Committee
be unable to secure whatever funds are necessary for the upkeep of the building.

5.4

A long lease arrangement would ensure that the Council retains an interest in the
provision of a local community facility should the Management Committee fail to
achieve the required finances or management responsibilities. However, there are
already a number of community facilities in the vicinity of Woodsley Road, e.g.
the Burley Lodge Centre, the Cardigan Centre, Woodhouse Community Centre and
the soon to be Royal Park Community Space. If Woodsley Road were to fail as a
community centre, under a different management structure, the impact on local
affordable community space would not be as great as it would if there were no other
centres nearby.

5.5

Both a long lease or freehold disposal would provide the Council with enough
revenue savings to cover the same cost at the newly created community space
within Royal Park. The cost for which has yet to be identified from within the
Council’s already limited resources. However, under a long lease arrangement the
Management Committee would seek three to five years continuation funding of
the centre’s annual running costs. If this were to be agreed then there would be no
revenue savings under this option for up to five years.

5.6

The freehold disposal of the site would generate a capital receipt for the
Council, in addition to the annual revenue savings that would occur. It is likely that
the capital receipt would be subsumed into the citywide receipts programme, unless
a convincing business case could be put together for use of the funds within the
Inner North West. One possible, and related option would be to put forward a case
for the capital funds to be used for improved community centre provision within the
locality. Woodhouse Community Centre for example is in need of significant
improvements which are at this time beyond the affordability of the community
centres maintenance programme.
Page 74

5.7

Freehold ownership of the site would allow the Management Committee to more
easily realise their aspirations for the building, as they would be able to use the
centre as collateral to raise funds for centre development or improvements.

5.8

The Council would be able to ensure, under a freehold disposal, that the site
remains a community centre. A restricted covenant would ensure that the
Management Committee were unable to either use, or dispose of the site for any
other use than a community centre.

6.0

Recommendations

6.1

The Area Committee is asked to:a) Note the contents of the report;
b) Approve the commencement of negotiations with Woodsley Road Management
Committee on the restricted freehold disposal of the centre; and
c) Agree to receive a further report on the outcomes of the negotiations and
seeking final approval to any proposed disposal.

Page 75

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76

Agenda Item 14
Originator: Peter Warneford
Tel: 2477630

Report of The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods
Inner North West Leeds Area Committee
Date: 3rd April 2008
Subject: Update on HMO Licensing
Electoral Wards Affected:

Specific Implications For:

ALL

Equality and Diversity

X

Council
Function

Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Delegated Executive
Function available
for Call In

Community Cohesion

x

Narrowing the Gap

x

x

Delegated Executive
Function not available for
Call In Details set out in the
report

1.0

INTRODUCTION

1.1

The Housing Act 2004 introduced the mandatory licensing of certain high risk houses
in multiple occupation (HMOs). The Act was implemented on 6 April 2006 and gave a
period of 3 months from the implementation date for applications to be made for a
licence after which time it became an offence to operate a licensable HMO without
having made an application.

1.2

This report outlines the current position in Leeds of the impact of the legislation.

2.0

BACKGROUND

2.1

The Act redefined the term HMO in so far as housing legislation. The actual definition
of an HMO is complex as is that of a licensable HMO but in simplistic terms a
licensable HMO is a house where there are 5 or more persons, comprising of at least
2 households and the accommodation is on 3 or more storeys.

2.2

This definition meant that student shared houses meeting the requirements detailed
above become licensable HMOs. Again in simplistic terms most 5 + 6 person student
shared houses had not previously been an HMO. Most student shared houses of 3 or
4 persons whether living in two or 3 storey houses also became HMOs under this new
Housing legislation but are not subject to mandatory licensing.

Page 77

2.3

Because of the nature of properties in Leeds (namely a significant number of 3 storey
properties) and that there were two major Universities in Leeds it was clear that the
impact of the Act would have a significant effect in Leeds as there were potentially
hundreds/thousands of licensable properties particularly in NW Leeds.

2.4

It was not possible to give any accurate prediction of the number of licensable
properties as the Act had redefined a House in Multiple Occupation but initial estimate
was for up to 8000 licensable properties. This number was based on information from
the then current Leeds House Condition Survey and in consultation with Unipol
Student Homes, Council Tax, Development Department and West Yorkshire Fire and
Rescue Service.

2.5

The definition of a HMO under planning legislation and for Council Tax purposes was
unaltered by the Housing Act and there are significant differences under the different
pieces of legislation. This causes some confusion about what constitutes an HMO.

3.0

CURRENT SITUATION

3.1

Towards the end of February 2008 a total of 2761 applications for licensing had been
received and 2372 licenses had been issued. The difference between the two figures
relates to applications currently being processed for the issue of a licence (152) and
applications that have been withdrawn for various reasons but including sale of
property and applicants not achieving occupancy levels requiring mandatory licensing.

3.2

Of the licences issued to date the vast majority relate to shared housing in NW Leeds.
2201 – or 92% of the total licences issued throughout Leeds. Only 171 licences have
been issued in other parts of the City. Approximately 5% of the licences issued relate
to bedsit or hostel accommodation which is of concern as it is believed that this type
of accommodation is likely to be in the poorest condition and possibly with the worst
management and the figure of less than 150 is disturbingly low.

3.3

The following table gives a summary of the licences issued in NW Leeds with
comparative figures for the rest of Leeds.
Ward

Licenses
Issued

% of Licences
issued in Ward
Compared to total
Leeds figure

No. of
applications
received in
Ward

1176

49.4%

1315

Hyde Park and
Woodhouse

706

29.6%

782

Kirkstall

212

8.9%

289

Weetwood

107

4.5%

137

2201

92.4%

2523

171

7.6%

238

2372

100%

2761

Headingley

Above 4 Wards
Rest of Leeds
All of Leeds

Page 78

3.4

Outside the above wards the ward with the highest number of licences issued is
Chapel Allerton with 35 licences (1.5% of the total issued in Leeds). 10 wards in
Leeds have not received any applications for licensing or have had licences issued.

3.5

Analysis of the applications received from landlords is complex, but it appears
approximately 950 landlords control the licensable properties, of which one third are
members of the Leeds Landlord Accreditation Scheme (LLAS) or the Unipol Code of
Standards whereas the remaining 67% are outside these schemes. However,
approximately 44% (1216) of the applications received are from either LLAS or Unipol
Landlords.

3.6

A license condition is that the licence holder and manager (if different from the licence
holder) must attend an approved training course. The approved course covers
matters relating to managing a tenancy, Leeds Council’s advisory housing standards
and health and safety requirements relating to the property. Over 500 landlords have
so far attended the course or are booked onto it.

3.7

Licences are subject to an application fee. To date invoices have been issued to the
total of £1.550m and income of £1.499m has been received at the time of this report,
which represents 96.7% income against the total invoice issued.

3.8

Of the 2761 applications received the vast majority were received during the first 3
months of the implementation of the Act. Only 302 applications were received
throughout 2007 and only 30 to date in 2008.

3.9

There has been, and continues to be, considerable proactive work undertaken by the
HMO Licensing team to identify unlicensed but licensable HMOs throughout the City.
Whilst they have undertaken specific targeted work based on intelligence collection on
identifying such properties they have also undertaken a number of initiatives with
partners. Some of the initiatives undertaken by the Licensing Team have been
highlighted in National Guidance in identifying unlicensed HMOs as good practise by
LACORS (a good Government approved body issuing guidance to all local authorities
on the implementation of the Act).

4.0

LEEDS HOUSE CONDITION SURVEY – PRIVATE SECTOR – 2008

4.1

The results of the above survey in 2007 undertaken by Consultants commissioned by
the Council have recently become available. Having regard to the definition of a
licensable HMO in the Housing Act 2004 the consultants advise that there are 3000
licensable HMOs within the City and this figure is predicted within a 10% accuracy
and therefore the medium range is between 2700 and 3300 licensable properties.
Having regard to the licenses currently issued (2382) this would represent a range
between 88% to 72% with 79.4% representing the number of licenses issued against
the condition survey report of the number of licensable properties or 84.5% of licenses
when the number of outstanding applications which have to be processed against the
survey results of 3000 properties.

4.2

In 2007 the Council revised its estimate of the number of licensable HMOs from 8000
to 4000. The figure of 3000 is now believed to be a realistic and accurate figure for the
number of licensable properties in the City.

4.3

There are a number of reasons why the Council now consider the revised number of
3000 properties is the target level for licensable HMOs namely:
Page 79

•
•
•

•
•
•

there had been no previously known accurate figure of potentially licensable
properties.
a significant number of larger shared houses have been converted over the last
few years to self contained flats thereby taking them out of licensing.
there has been a significant number of purpose built large developments aimed
at the student markets which has affected the letting market in the traditional
housing sector meaning that a substantial number of shared houses are being
under occupied.
a number of landlords have purposely downsized their properties to avoid
licensing.
many of the traditional bedsit properties have been converted to studio flats
again taking such properties outside licensing.
the survey was commissioned following the introduction of the Act and therefore
the new definition of HMO was taken into account.

5.0

NATIONAL POSITION

5.1

LACORS – a government approved body, as detailed in 3.9 above, undertook a
national survey effective on 2nd March 2007 to determine the impact of licensing
throughout the country – publishing its report in August 2007. At that time a total of
22314 applications had been submitted nationally – Leeds had received 2505 of
those applications or just over 11% of the total number of applications countrywide
and were the only Authority to have received over 1000 applications at that time.
Only 3 authorities, including Leeds, estimated they had over 1000 licensable
properties in the survey.

5.2

In December 2007 an authority with an estimated 4000 licensable HMOs had
received only 995 applications and issued less than 100 licences.

5.3

Leeds is leading nationally on the number of applications received and the number of
licences issued.

6.0

ONGOING POSITIONS

6.1

The HMO licensing team continue to undertake proactive work to identify unlicensed
licensable HMOs. A number of initiatives have already been carried out including
work with other agencies both within LCC and outside involvement with Area based
initiatives such as Operation Champions, work with both Leeds University and Leeds
Metropolitan University, targeted work at Managing and Letting Agents, newspaper
articles, review of property adverts and street walks as well as many other actions –
(see also 3.9 above).

6.2

This proactive work will continue in an attempt to maximum compliance with the
legislation and support of the PRS that has sought to comply with legislative
requirements whilst seeking out the small proportion of the sector that is avoiding
control and compliance with proper housing standards and management.

6.3

An inspection programme has now commenced to determine compliance with
licence conditions and ensure that properties are free from Category 1 hazards
(under the Housing, Health and Safety Rating System (HHSRS) that was also
introduced by the Housing Act 2004). A risk based system has been introduced for
the inspection programme.

Page 80

6.4

Every landlord will have at least one property inspected but the inspection
programme also has a flexible approach to the rationale of how many properties are
inspected on the larger landlord portfolios. The inspection regime has been agreed
with members of the PRS who formed a Consultative Group with the Council to help
in the implementation of the Act.

6.5

The budget for HMO licensing conditions to be closely monitored to ensure the cost
of the service is met from the licence fee income.

6.6

Review the HMO licensing fee structure and the licence period for those properties
that should have been licensed from the implementation period of the Act that are
identified particularly through proactive work of the Licensing Team.

7.0

DISCRETIONARY LICENSING

7.1

The Housing Act 2004 also introduced the Additional licensing of other HMOs. To
implement such licensing a local housing authority must receive approval from the
Department of Communities and Local Government (CLG) following the presentation
of a business case in accordance with approved guidelines.

7.2

The case to CLG must relate to the nature or type of property. Additional Licensing
relates to the health and safety requirements of eligible properties rather than trying
to control the number of HMOs within a locality.

7.3

Whilst mandatory licensing has largely been successfully introduced to Leeds much
work remains to be done for the Authority to complete its statutory requirements.

7.4

The Council remain committed to considering introducing Additional Licensing
through both the Private Rented Sector Housing Strategy and the Shared Housing
Strategy but the proper and full implementation of Mandatory Licensing must remain
a priority at the present time and Additional Licensing will be reviewed in the future.

8.0

Recommendation

8.1

The Area Committee is asked to note the content of the report.

Page 81

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82

Agenda Item 15
Originator: Dayle Lynch
Tel: 0113 3952835
Report of the Director of Environment & Neighbourhoods
Inner North West Area Committee
Date: 3rd April 2008
Subject: S106 Planning Agreements
Electoral Wards Affected:

Specific Implications For:

ALL

Equality and Diversity

Ward Members consulted
(referred to in report)

Delegated Executive
Function available
for Call In

Council
Function

Community Cohesion

ü

Narrowing the Gap

ü

ü

Delegated Executive
Function not available for
Call In Details set out in the
report

1.0

Background

1.1

At its meeting on 7th February 2008 the Area Committee asked that a general report
on S106 be included as an agenda item at a future meeting.

1.2

Attached at Appendix A is a report produced for City Development’s Scrutiny Board
in December 2007, which provides the an overview of S106, how payments are
derived and how the funds are then managed.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

The Area Committee is asked to note the contents of the report attached at
Appendix A.

Page 83

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84

APPENDIX A

Originator: Clare Munnelly
Tel:

22-43261

Report of Chief Planning Officer
Scrutiny Board: City Development
Date: 18th December 2007
Subject:

THE CURRENT POSITION WITH S106 PLANNING AGREEMENTS & S278
HIGHWAYS AGREEMENTS

Electoral Wards Affected:

Specific Implications For:

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Narrowing the Gap

Ward Members consulted
(Referred to in report)

1.

PURPOSE

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide the Scrutiny Board with;
i)
An overview of the current system for negotiating, reporting and managing
S106 Agreements in Leeds, including audit trails.
ii)
A breakdown of funds generated from S106 Agreements in Leeds and
protocols for spending sums.
iii)
An overview of the use of planning conditions to secure planning obligations,
including the process for enforcement.
iv)
An overview of the S278 Agreement process.

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1

Planning Obligations, also known as S106 agreements, are typically agreements
negotiated between local authorities and developers in the context of granting
planning consent in order to mitigate their impacts and make them acceptable in
planning terms. Direct provision, through on-site benefits, and/or commuted
financial contributions may relate to transport provision, affordable housing,
greenspace, education or other community benefit. The wording of each S106
agreement will vary depending upon the benefit being sought.

-1-

Page 85

APPENDIX A
2.2

Circular 05/2005 sets out Government policy for the use of S106 agreements. A
document entitled Planning Obligations: Practice Guidance published July 2006 by
the Department for Communities and Local Government provides further guidance
to all parties involved in the planning obligations process.
Leeds Unitary Development Plan (UDP) policies carried forward as part of the
emerging
Local Development Framework (LDF) provide the local policy context in which the
authority
can seek planning obligations from developers. These policies are translated further
within
published supplementary planning guidance (SPG) retained as part of the LDF or
more
recently through the draft supplementary planning documents (SPDs) which are
being
produced as part of the LDF process.

2.3

The SPG/SPD documents provide information on the level of contribution, the
method of payment and the monitoring of agreements. The level of contribution
may be, for example, the provision of land laid out as Greenspace (on the
development site) or a commuted sum in lieu of this but which has to be spent on
the provision or enhancement of Greenspace in the same community area. The
SPG/SPD documents primarily ensure a district wide approach to securing
contributions, however, additional area specific guidance is also provided by a
number of approved SPG and SPD documents (e.g. Eastgate). Area specific policy
will also be provided through the range of Area Action Plans (e.g. EASEL, Aire
Valley, West Leeds Gateway) that are being developed as part of the LDF process.
These Area Action Plans are still being prepared and have not yet been adopted.

2.4

Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, in summary, says that a
Local Planning Authority may enter into an agreement with any person interested in
land in their area for the purpose of restricting or regulating the development or use
of the land. Any such agreement may contain such incidental and consequential
provisions (including financial ones) as appear to the local planning authority to be
necessary or expedient for the purposes of the agreement.

2.5

Circular 05/2005 however, provides further guidance and clarification
(supplemented by Planning Obligations: Practice Guidance). It states that ‘in
dealing with planning applications, Local Planning Authorities consider each on its
merits and reach a decision based on whether the application accords with the
relevant development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
Where applications do not meet these requirements they may be refused.
However in some instances, it may be possible to make acceptable development
proposals which might otherwise be unacceptable through the use of planning
conditions or, where this is not possible, through planning obligations.’ The
outcome of any planning obligation therefore, should be that the proposed
development concerned is made to accord with published local, regional or national
planning policies. Any obligation must therefore, relate back to a published local,
regional or national planning policy.

-2-

Page 86

APPENDIX A
2.6

The way planning obligations are managed is founded in national legislation and
advice (S106 of the Town & Country Planning Act and Circular 05/2005). The
responsibility for local policy development and implementation lies with Strategy &
Policy Services and the policy laid down in SPG/SPDs form the basis for
negotiations with the developer. Calculations are worked out and are provided to the
developer to ensure transparency during this process. Where the full contribution
cannot be sought, a financial appraisal is submitted. This is then the subject of
independent scrutiny before an appropriate balance is determined. Case officers
from Planning Services alongside Planning Policy Officers (as required); carry out
negotiations with the developer. Where a planning condition is used to secure
planning obligations, the negotiations still take place and the calculations are still
provided and retained in the same way.

2.7

In addition the Secretary of State’s policy contained within Circular 05/2005
requires amongst other factors, that planning obligations are only sought where
they meet the following tests:A planning obligation must be:i)
relevant to planning;
ii)
necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
iii)
directly related to the proposed development;
iv)
fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the proposed
development; and
v)
reasonable in all other respects.

2.8

The circular goes further to say that planning obligations:i)

ii)

must be directly related to the proposal – for example there should be a
functional or geographical link between the development and the item being
provided as part of the contribution;
should not be used solely to resolve existing deficiencies in infrastructure
provision or to secure contributions to the achievement of wider objectives
that are not necessary to allow consent for any given development.

2.9

There is therefore limited scope for flexibility in spending monies negotiated as part
of a S106 agreement for anything other than what they were originally identified for
in the S106 agreement. Many S106 agreements restrict the allocation of monies to
a specific project or a specific geographical area which is reasonably related to the
development proposal.

2.10

As mentioned previously in this report the local policy context is provided by the
UDP (or emerging LDF) and is translated further by various SPG/SPD documents.
Sums of money or on site benefits cannot therefore, be negotiated via S106
agreements without clearly being in accordance with national and local policy and
guidance.

-3-

Page 87

APPENDIX A
3.

TYPES OF BENEFITS SECURED VIA 106 AGREEMENTS

3.1

There are six main types of benefits secured by S106 agreements. These are:i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

Greenspace: Either commuted sums in lieu of works or the provision of an
area of greenspace or play area on an area of greenspace. The provision
of a commuted sum in lieu of onsite/offsite provision tends to be more
common.
Affordable Housing: Can also be delivered via commuted sums in lieu of
onsite provision or the provision of a number of affordable dwellings within
a particular scheme. The latter being the most common approach.
Education:
An example of this would be where a new housing
development is likely to increase the school roll of a nearby school beyond
its existing capacity. In such cases a commuted sum for the building of a
new classroom may be sought.
Public Transport Infrastructure: Major developments (i.e. those which
have a significant level of traffic generation) are required to make a
contribution towards the cost of providing major public transport
infrastructure measures as identified in the West Yorkshire Local Transport
Plan. These measures include for example, guided bus schemes, new rail
infrastructure, park and ride schemes, bus priority schemes and the bus
rapid transit proposals being explored as a replacement to the Supertram.
Furthermore, contributions may also have been secured for specific public
transport measures within the vicinity of the development (e.g. the provision
of a new bus service to serve the site or improvements to nearby bus
shelters).
Highways Works: Commuted sums may be paid to mitigate the impact of
the development on the surrounding highway network, where the full cost
of the highway works are not to be borne by the developer.
Other Community Benefits: Sums held here could relate, for example, to
such works as the provision of public art, provision of community facilities
or sports scholarships.

3.2

All of the areas mentioned above for which on site benefits or monies in lieu of on
site benefits are negotiated by way of S106 agreements are supported by UDP
policies either contained within the main document or SPG/SPD. These policies are
well established and are informed by a sound and robust evidence base.

4.

PRINCIPLES GOVERNING THE MANAGEMENT OF PLANNING OBLIGATIONS

4.1

The responsibility for monitoring S106 Agreements lies with the Chief Planning
Officer though a number of different service areas are involved at several stages.
The Planning Agreement Manager is responsible for co-ordinating the different
stages of this process and manages a series of spreadsheets detailing information
on all planning obligations. This information includes monies received, monies due,
monies spent and available to spend, restrictions on spend and any onsite works
due/carried out. This information is reported to all Ward Members and appropriate
officers (e.g. from Housing, Education and Highways) on, at least, a quarterly basis
to advise Members and appropriate officers where monies are available to be
spent and where/when they must be spent by.

-4-

Page 88

APPENDIX A
A number of officers (who are involved at different stages of the S106 process)
input information onto the spreadsheets in order to ensure that they are up-to-date
on a daily basis and that accurate information can be continuously available to
Members, Officers, developers and the public.
4.2

The process for tracking sums received, or works carried out and the allocation of
monies varies according to the type of obligation (e.g. direct provision by
developers on site or commuted sum benefits). In the case of Greenspace, the
process for reaching agreement with Ward Members and local communities about
how the money received should be spent and then securing the necessary formal
approvals for schemes to progress is the responsibility of officers within Strategy &
Policy. For off-site payments received for Greenspace, Affordable Housing,
Education, Community Benefits, Highways & Public Transport infrastructure we
work closely with other council departments and external partners. For example,
we work with Learning and Leisure in regard to off-site payments to provide or
enhance Greenspace in the same community area in which the development
paying the sum is located.

Audit Requirements
4.3

In August 2006, the Audit Commission produced two reports on ‘improving
performance on S106 Agreements’. The reports highlighted a number of key
principles which would be evident in a Council that is working effectively to optimise
community benefits through the planning process. These were as follows;
i)
A clear up-to-date policy framework;
ii)
Sound processes and systems of performance management;
iii)
Good understanding of local needs for infrastructure through effective
engagement
with communities and other departments;
iv)
Corporate Objectives which are adequately communicated to all relevant
stakeholders.

4.4

In April 2007, Internal Audit reviewed our current methodology against the above
principles to form an assessment as to its effectiveness. The review noted that the
key principles highlighted by the Audit Commission have already been incorporated
into our approach to managing S106 Agreements and Planning Obligations per se.

4.5

The Internal Audit concluded that ‘Substantial assurance was obtained regarding
the control environment and compliance with these controls’. The substantial
assurance was in relation to the following objectives;
i)
The procedures for negotiating S106 Agreements are clear, documented
and transparent and the officers involved in the process are suitably skilled
and experienced;
ii)
Adequate systems are in place for recording all S106 Agreements,
monitoring the Agreements to ensure that all sums are collected, and to
ensure that all receipts are correctly recorded;
iii)
Procedures are in place to ensure that S106 expenditure is used in line
with relevant guidance, agreement and agreed timescales.

-5-

Page 89

APPENDIX A
5.

SECTION 278 AGREEMENTS IN RELATION TO PLANNING APPROVALS

5.1

The assessment of a planning application sometimes results in a requirement for off
site highway works to be funded by the developer. If the works are to be totally
funded by the developer then the appropriate means of achieving this is through a
S278 Agreement of the Highways Act 1980. As stated previously in para 3.1(v), if
the developer is contributing a fixed amount towards highway works, for example a
contribution to a larger scheme than necessary for the development itself, then a
Section 106 agreement under the T & CPA 1990 is the appropriate method.

5.2

S278 is a mechanism by which a highway authority can take payment from a third
party for the execution of highway works where that party will derive special benefit
from such works. The methodology of the Leeds City Council’s standard agreement
is:i)
ii)
iii)

The highway works are agreed prior to the granting of planning permission
and conditioned on the approval document.
Once planning permission has been granted the developer requests that a
S278 Agreement be entered into.
The agreement is negotiated on the principles of the standard agreement
whereby:• Leeds City Council will inform the developer of the staff costs for
carrying out the detail design of the scheme.
• On receipt of a portion of the design fee the Council carries out the
design, and with the developer’s approval seeks tenders.
• Payment from the developer is required in advance of entering into a
contract for the works.

5.3

The S278 process has been subjected to financial audit on two occasions in the last
five years and the process, and compliance with the process, has been confirmed
by the audit.

6.

ALLOCATION OF MONIES RECEIVED FROM S106 PLANNING OBLIGATIONS

6.1

As mentioned previously, in Leeds the system for managing planning obligations, is
led by the Chief Planning Officer although the process involves numerous parties
and departments of the council, typically Planning & Development Services,
Strategy and Policy, Finance and Legal Services and other external bodies such as
Metro.

6.2

The process for allocation of monies will vary and can depend on the type of benefit
the commuted sum is in lieu of or in contribution to (e.g. Greenspace, Affordable
Housing, Education, Community Benefits, Highways and Public Transport
Infrastructure).
i)

In the case of Greenspace, Ward Members, officers or the local
community may first identify potential Greenspace projects. A corporate
officer working group, the Greenspace Implementation Group (GIG), has
been established to bring these schemes forward in accordance with
agreed priorities and to ensure that there is Ward Member and community

-6-

Page 90

APPENDIX A

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

support for suggested schemes. Irrespective of where a particular scheme
originates, the support of Ward Members is a pre requisite for it to
progress.
Financial contributions received for Education & Highways are passed on
directly to Education Leeds & Highways, respectively, as they are related to
specific schemes or provision of facilities in the vicinity of the development.
Affordable Housing Where sums are secured, they are in effect, ‘banked’
until sufficient funds are in place to implement schemes but because of the
policy framework they tend to relate to specific schemes or provision is
made on the application site.
Public Transport Infrastructure contributions are ring fenced for those
schemes identified within the West Yorkshire Local Transport Plan and/or
for specific measures in the vicinity of the application site.
Other Community Benefits, developer contributions which are not
specifically for a named project are spent in locations, which as closely as
possible, meet the needs of the residents of the generating development,
within the same or adjoining Community Area.

6.3

On bigger schemes, S106 monies may be paid at different stages of development
and this phasing may affect the speed at which payments are made. For example,
the planning application may have been approved in 2003 and the S106 agreement
drawn up in 2003. Development on site, which is outside Leeds City Council control,
may not have commenced until 2006, and monies may not be due to be paid to the
Council until the development is fully occupied which may be 2007/2008 or some
other future date.

6.4

Some S106 agreements may be drawn up and monies agreed but developments
are never implemented so these monies would then not be payable.

6.5

Some monies may be held as a bond and therefore may not be due unless onsite
works are not carried out as agreed. If the onsite works are carried out these sums
would then not be payable. For example, greenspace may be provided onsite
instead.

6.6

Some monies may only have been agreed recently and so are not due to be paid to
the Council for some considerable time. Trigger points may fall at different stages of
the development. For example, some trigger points may require payment to be
made on commencement of development. Some may require payment on
occupation of the development or even on completion of the development.

6.7

It should be noted that many S106 agreements include a claw back clause if the
money is not spent within a specified time. This money must then be repaid with
interest accrued (where applicable).

7.

SCOPE FOR FLEXIBILITY WHEN SPENDING COMMUTED SUMS RECEIVED
UNDER S106 AGREEMENTS

7.1

Appendix 1 of this report demonstrates;
i)

A breakdown of funds generated from developers under S106 agreements.

-7-

Page 91

APPENDIX A
ii)
iii)

Indication of amounts available to spend.
Indication of amounts due when relevant payment trigger points are reached.

The information within Appendix A is an accurate account, at the time of writing, and
subject to change as new agreements are signed each week, some are
subsequently superseded and some of the planning applications actually lapse.
7.2

At the time of writing this report the total sum of greenspace monies stands at
£7,765,243. Of this, £4,134,018 is committed or spent with £3,632,896 available to
spend which is termed uncommitted. All of this, however, is restricted in some way
by the wording in the various section 106 agreements either to a specific project or
area as illustrated above. If the sums of money or onsite benefits were not
restricted in this way then they would not be in accordance with national and local
policy and guidance. Thus, any attempt at negotiating such unfettered benefits
would be open to challenge from developers and the legality of such agreements
would be questioned by the Auditors.

8.

THE ENFORCEMENT OF PLANNING CONDITIONS USED TO SECURE
PLANNING OBLIGATIONS

8.1

Section 72 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 contains a general power to
impose conditions on a planning permission but judicial decisions have limited this,
and to be lawful a planning condition must be reasonable and relate to the
development permitted by the planning permission.

8.2

The determination of major planning applications can be delayed by the requirement
for the applicant to enter into a S106 obligation. In appropriate circumstances,
particularly in the case of straightforward major applications, it is possible to use
Grampian conditions as a prelude to obligations being entered into, so as to enable
the application to be determined, but preventing implementation of the permission
until such time that alternative arrangements i.e. S106 obligation has been put in
place. The Planning Officers Society has issued guidance on this approach which
has been supported and agreed by the CLG.

8.3

Detailed advice on the use of conditions is given in Circular 11/95 which stipulates
that conditions should be necessary, relevant to planning and to the development to
be permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects.

8.4

The guidance note from the Planning Officers Society listed the main advantages
and disadvantages of the use of a planning condition to secure planning obligations
and these are reproduced below;
Main advantages
i)
it enables the administrative side of the processing of a planning
application to be completed when the planning issues have been resolved;
ii)
it assists local planning authorities to comply with the Government’s Best
Value indicator relating to the timeliness of the processing of planning
applications;
iii)
the conclusion of the planning issues by the grant of major planning
permission sooner than would otherwise be the case if it had to await the
-8-

Page 92

APPENDIX A

iv)

v)

vi)

completion of a legal agreement sets the time from when a judicial review
can be brought at an earlier date;
granting the planning permission immediately with a Grampian condition
precludes any later discussion as to whether or not the planning application
should be formally reconsidered by the local planning authority if there is a
long delay between the resolution to grant planning permission and its
actual grant, whether by reason of the legal process or otherwise;
the third and fourth bullet points above are equally of benefit to planning
applicants, in particular developers. An advantage to developers alone is
that it may allow them to exercise an option to purchase at an earlier date,
certain in the knowledge that planning permission has been granted and
that the development will be able to proceed on the completion of the
planning obligation;
it avoids the need for the planning obligation to be entered into by the
existing owners where land is to be sold for development. This can
sometimes be inconvenient and expensive as there may well be no
contractual provision requiring an existing landowner to enter into a s106
agreement and sometimes a misunderstanding as to exactly what it entails.

8.5

Main Disadvantages;
i)
Use of such conditions has not yet been tested in the courts.
ii)
Planning Conditions must clearly and consistently be justified against policies
and any financial appraisal to enable transparency and accountability.

8.6

The enforcement of planning conditions allows a local planning authority to take
enforcement action if appropriate where the condition has been breached. The
Enforcement Team and the Planning Agreement Manager both monitor progress
with individual cases to ensure that non-compliances are identified and dealt with at
the earliest stage possible. A summary of the current position for planning
conditions used to secure planning obligations is provided in Appendix 2.

8.7

In Leeds, the Planning Agreement Manager is responsible for tracking & monitoring
planning conditions used to secure planning obligations. Onsite monitoring visits are
carried out, as they are with S106 agreements. If the development has commenced
and the developer has not complied with the planning condition used to secure
planning obligations, the Planning Agreement Manager will communicate this noncompliance to the Enforcement Team, who then instigates enforcement action. This
will begin with a letter to the developer detailing the seriousness of the noncompliance and the requirement for immediate action by the developer and
ultimately could result in works being stopped onsite if the developer disputes
payment.

8.8

The condition is also logged as a local land charge which means that a developer
would not be able to sell any properties without this non-compliance showing up on
a local land search performed by buyers.

9.

CONCLUSION

9.1

The recent internal audit of our systems for managing planning obligations in Leeds,
concluded that ‘Substantial assurance was obtained regarding the control
environment and compliance with these controls’. However, there are areas for
improvement which we will address in order to improve the transparency of our
processes in the future.

-9-

Page 93

APPENDIX A
9.2

In line with policy guidance, we will continue to use planning Conditions to secure
planning obligations where appropriate so that ‘the negotiation of planning
obligations does not unnecessarily delay the planning process, thereby holding up
the development’ (Circular 05/2005: B31). For this reason, the Circular also advises
that ‘Where there is a choice between imposing conditions and entering into a
planning obligation, the imposition of a condition is preferable’ (Circular 05/2005: B2
& B51). However, we will ensure that our Heads of Terms are made more explicit.

9.3

We will continue to maintain our series of spreadsheets and calculations of
contributions to ensure accountability and maintain transparency. However, we will
adopt a database to ensure that this information is more easily managed and that
reporting can be provided in a more efficient way.

9.4

We will continue to report unspent balances to appropriate officers and
departments, to ensure that monies continue to be utilized at the earliest opportunity
in a way which reflects choice for the developer yet meets local priorities, within the
national policy framework. We will continue to involve members and community
groups in the allocation of greenspace monies to ensure that we are fully aware of
local community needs and priorities when allocating available monies.

10.

RECOMMENDATION

10.1

Scrutiny Board is asked to note the contents of this report and is reported to make
comments and recommendations as appropriate.

- 10 -

Page 94

APPENDIX A

APPENDICES
APPENDIX 1:
A BREAKDOWN OF FUNDS GENERATED FROM DEVELOPERS UNDER S106 AGREEMENTS
This breakdown does not include works which are provided onsite as agreed under S106 of the Town & Country Planning Act. It only includes
commuted sums paid in lieu of works being carried out.
Type Of Obligation
Sums Received
Sums Committed*
Sums Available To
Sums Still Due**
Or Spent
Spend

Page 95

Affordable Housing

£4,449,681

£2,664,514

£1,851,453

£275,000

Highways

£1,012,635

£527,639

£489,694

£2,310,500

Public Transport Infrastructure
(These Sums Are Ringfenced)

£4,203,980

£4,203,980

£0

£3,313,897

Community Benefits & Education

£2,429,082

£2,153,924

£313,884

£1,727,380

Major Developments
(E.g. Holbeck Urban Village & Sharp Lane)

£7,207,786

£7,207,786

£0

£2,014,514

Greenspace

£7,765,243

£4,134,018

£3,632,896

£4,157,053

£20,891,861
TOTALS
£27,068,407
£6,287,927***
£13,798,344
*The term ‘committed’ only applies to monies which have been matched to specific schemes and approved by Panel. This does not include
ideas in the pipeline. Therefore, some of the sums marked ‘available to spend’ may be in the early stages of being matched to specific
schemes.
**This column includes S106 Agreements which have not yet reached trigger point (i.e. not yet due for payment) and also S106 Agreements
which have reached trigger point and which have been invoiced for. Currently there is £410,743 that has been recently invoiced for and is
awaiting payment.
*** The unspent balance is brought to the attention of Members and council officers on, at least, a quarterly basis with the aim of stimulating
debate on how any available monies can be spent.

- 11 -

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX 2:

CURRENT POSITION FOR PLANNING CONDITIONS USED TO SECURE PLANNING OBLIGATIONS

Current Stage

Contributions received

Under Negotiation

Page 96

Outstanding Contributions

TOTAL

Value of
Contribution
(where
Agreed)

Number of
Developments

£865,189

30

£7,057,524

110

£830,092

53

£8,752,805

193

- 12 -

Comments

This includes commuted sums received, invoices raised and
awaiting payment, onsite provision in lieu of commuted sums .
This includes Planning Conditions on outline applications,
developments where work has not yet commenced onsite, S106
Agreements currently being drafted and new applications being
submitted.
These outstanding contributions are being chased on an
individual basis. Where there are undue delays, enforcement
action is being taken.

Agenda Item 16
Originator: Stuart Robinson
Tel:

(0113) 247 4360

Report of the Chief Democratic Services Officer
North West (Inner) Area Committee
3rd April 2008

Date:

Subject: Dates, Times and Venues of Area Committee Meetings 2008/09
Electoral Wards Affected:

Specific Implications For:

ALL

Equality and Diversity
Community Cohesion
Narrowing the Gap

Council
Function

X

Delegated Executive
Function available
for Call In

Delegated Executive
Function not available for
Call In Details set out in the
report

Executive Summary
The purpose of the report is to request Members to give consideration to agreeing the dates
and times of their meetings for the 2008/09 municipal year which commences in May 2008.
1.0

Background Information

1.1

The Area Committee Procedure Rules stipulate that there shall be at least six ordinary
meetings of each Area Committee in each municipal year (May to April).

1.2

The Procedure Rules also state that each Committee will agree its schedule of
meetings for the year either at the last meeting in the current municipal year (i.e.
tonight) or at its first meeting in the new municipal year. In order to appear in the
Council’s official Diary and Yearbook for 2008/09, the dates and times of your
meetings need to be approved tonight.

2.0

Options

2.1

The options are:•
•
•

To approve the list of dates and times provisionally agreed with the NW Area
Manager based on the existing pattern;
To consider other alternative dates;
To continue to meet at 7.00 pm, or to consider alternative times;
Page 97

•

To continue to alternate between suitable venues within the four NW Inner wards
or to seek some other venues.

3.0

Meeting Dates

3.1

The following provisional dates have been agreed in consultation with the NW Area
Manager. They follow roughly the same pattern as last year, i.e. Thursday’s in July,
September, October/November, December, February and April :3rd July 2008;
25th September 2008;
13th November 2008;
18th December 2008,
5th February 2009; and
2nd April 2009.

3.2

A similar pattern of meetings is being suggested in respect of the other 9 Area
Committees, so that for co-ordination purposes, all Area Committees are meeting in
the same basic cycle and months. Whilst Members have discretion as to which
actual dates they wish to meet, they are requested to take into consideration that
any proposed substantial change to the cycle, e.g. changing months rather than
dates within the suggested months, will cause disruption and lead to co-ordination
problems between the Area Committees.

4.0

Meeting Days and Times

4.1

Currently the Committee meets on Thursday at 7.00 pm and the above suggested
dates reflect this pattern.

4.2

Meeting on set days and times has the advantage of certainty and regularity, which
assists people to plan their schedules. The downside might be that it could serve to
exclude certain people, for instance, who have other regular commitments on that
particular day or who might prefer either a morning or afternoon meeting or a
meeting immediately after normal work hours.

4.3

For these reasons, some Area Committees have chosen to vary their meeting days
and times, alternating between different weekdays and holding daytime and evening
meetings alternately. Others, however, have chosen a regular pattern similar to this
Committee’s existing arrangements – it really is a matter for Members to decide.

5.0

Meeting Venues

5.1

Currently the Committee alternates venues between the four NW Inner Wards.

5.2

If the Committee were minded to request the officers to explore possible alternative
venues, then the considerations Members and officers would have to taken into
account are matters such as cost, accessibility – particularly for people with
disabilities – and the facilities available at the venue, e.g. IT facilities for
presentations etc.
Page 98

5.3

From time to time, Members suggest moving meetings back to Civic Hall, Leeds.
The meeting facilities might arguably be better in some instances, and the venue
possibly more convenient for Members, and possibly also the public, as Leeds is the
hub of the public transport system. However, Members are reminded of the stated
role of Area Committees, as set out in Paragraph 2.1 the Area Committee
Procedure Rules :•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Act as a focal point for community involvement;
Take locally based decisions that deal with local issues;
Provide for accountability at local level;
Help Elected Members to listen to and represent their communities;
Help Elected Members to understand the specific needs of the community in
their area;
Promote community engagement in the democratic process;
Promote working relationships with District Partnerships and Parish and
Town Councils.

These aims and this role is unlikely to be enhanced by holding meetings at the
centre, and rather than move meetings to Civic Hall, Members might wish to look
again at other ways of publicizing meetings and encouraging greater community
engagement.
Another option might be to alternate meetings between the centre and local venues.
6.0

Recommendation

6.1

Members are requested to consider the options and to agree their meeting dates
and times for 2008/09 in order that they may be included in the Council’s official
diary for 2008/09. Meeting venues can if necessary be agreed at a later date, or left
for the officers to sort out, taking into account Members’ views, although a clear
indication of Members’ wishes in this regard would be helpful.

Page 99

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 100

Map – Bus Stop to School

City of Leeds School

Hyde Park Corner Bus Stop

Page 101

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102

Otley

33A

33

Menston

Tongue Lane

95

Bodington Hall

33

Otley
Old Rd.

Cookridge

33A
Yeadon
Westfield
Rawdon
Cross
Roads

18

50

33
33A

Headingley
Arndale Centre

Beckett
Park

Hawksworth
Broadway
New Road Side

Kirkstall Abbey

Page 103

Farsley
Cenotaph

Coal Hill
Lane

Farsley
Dawson’s
Corner

Broadlea
Terrace
Broad
Lane

Intake
Lane

4ftr

Armley Shops

Swinnow
Road
Pudsey
Town Hall

Gamecock
Inn

Hall Lane

Lower Wortley
Road

Belle Isle
Circus

e

Evenings & Sundays

3A

ir

3

Brown Line 1
Grey Goose

Red Line 3 3A

Ring Road
Beeston Park

4ftr Route
Middleton
Park

2

13

Blue Line 13 13A
Claret Line 16

Middleton
Shopping
Centre

13

Bodmin
Crescent

13A

Green Line 12

Town
Street

3A

White Rose Centre

51
51A

Tommy Wass

Ring Road
Beeston

s
ay
nd
Su

3

Garforth
Garforth
Old George

Garforth
Cemetery

18A

Temple Gate

Services which operate at
10 minute intervals or better
Monday to Saturday daytime*

Broadway Hotel
Hunslet Hawks

s&
ing
en
Ev

Cottingley

Colton
Sainsbury’s
Mon to Fri
peak hours only

Temple
Newsam
Road

Halton
Moor

Yellow Line 2

Tunstall Road

Wesley Street

1

Whitkirk

Aberford Road

Colton
Lane

Stile Hill Way/
Colton Road East

Hunslet
District Centre

Beeston Hill

Beeston
Fountain Street
Bridge Street
51
51
51A
51A
Britannia Road
1
Tingley Mill

18A

A

Whincover
Drive

18A

Selby
Road

18

York Road
Lupton Avenue

East Garforth
Inverness Road

37

51A
Morley
Queen Street

Cross
Gates

er

42 Old Farnley

Austhorpe Road

18

iv

Victoria Road

Church Lane

Cross Green
Lane

Halton Moor
Avenue

Hunslet
Hall Road

Ring Road
Lower Wortley

South
Parkway

Halton
Dial

Hunslet Road

Swarcliffe
Avenue
Penda’s
Way

Seacroft
Hospital

R

Butterbowl
Drive

Kentmere
Avenue

18
York
Street

Stanks
Drive

Gipton
Coldcotes
Circus

Foundry
Approach

Harehills
Lane

Seacroft
Bus Station

40
50A

Seacroft Village

Osmondthorpe
Lane

Elland Road
Leeds United
Dixon Lane
Churwell Hill

Fearnville
Road

Strathmore Drive

St. James’s
Hospital

North
Street

Copley Hill

Tong
Road

Stanningley
By-Pass

16
50

Harehills
Compton Road

Stanley
Road

Wellington
Road

49

Pudsey
Waterloo

Roundhay
Road

(see enlargement
for city centre
boarding points)

Hill Top Road
Bramley
Bus Depot

Chapeltown
Road

Leeds
City Centre
Kirkstall Road

50

Asket
Avenue

Gipton
50
Harehills
Road

Stoney Rock
Lane

Bramley Town End

4ftr

Grange Park
Road

Oakwood
Lane

Harehills
Parade

Sikh
Temple

Leeds
Universities

Park
Lane

Arlington
Road

Sheepscar

Hyde Park
Corner

Burley Road
Cardigan Road
Cardigan Fields
Leisure Park

Bramley
Shopping Centre

16

50A

13

3

Chapel Allerton
Hospital

Headingley Stadium
Cricket/Rugby
Abbey House
Victoria
Museum
Road
Moorland
Road
Kirkstall
Lane

River Aire

Sherburn
Road North

Asket
Drive

42

Brackenwood

Potternewton

Queenswood
Drive

56

Boggart Hill
Drive

Princes Avenue

Oakwood

Meanwood
Road

56

Broadgate
Lane

Horsforth
Fleece Hotel

Chapel
Allerton

Scott Hall

Woodhouse
Cricket Club

4ftr

Oakwood
McDonalds

Carr Manor
Road

Meanwood

Ring Road
Lawnswood School

Moor Grange

50A

Stonegate
Road

Spen Lane

Silk Mill
Way

Tinshill

Horsforth
The Green

Moortown 3A 13A
Corner
Gledhow

Grove Lane

50A
Long Row
50

51

Church Lane

Hospital
Lane

Tinshill
Lane

Horsforth
Station

Wigton
Moor

P&R

Whinmoor

49

Roundhay Park

71

51A

18A

33

51A 51

Ireland
Wood

Guiseley Morrisons

King Lane

Monkswood Gate

12

2

Street Lane

Alwoodley Gates
Moor Allerton

Holt Park

Green Lane

White Cross

Evenings & Sundays

71 Primley Park

1

96

Cookridge
Lane

Middleton Arms

Pink Line 18 18A

13A

Light Green Line 33 33A
Beige Line 37

Belle
Isle

Indigo Line 40
Mauve Line 42

12

Middleton Thorpe Lane
Produced by

22.10.07

www.fwt.co.uk

Purple Line 49

OrangeLine
Line 49
50 50A
Purple
MagentaLine
Line50
51 50A
51A
Orange
Turquoise Line 56
Turquoise Line 56
Peach Line 71
Peach Line 71
Sky Line 96
Sky Line 96 96A
Other frequent services
services with
a daytime services
frequency of at least
Other
frequent

every 10 minutes on common sections of route

Main stops
Interchange Point
Main stops
Terminus
96
Interchange Point
Bus runs in direction of arrow
Terminus
96
Certain journeys only (see diagram)
Bus runs in direction of arrow
GREEN ZONE
Evenings and Sundays only
* Mon-Fri 0800-1800, Saturday 0900-1630
* Mon-Fri 0800-1800, Saturday 0900-1630

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 104

